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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Sing Lee Software (Group)
Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief:— 1. the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading; 2. there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and 3. all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded
on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHEFE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sing Lee Software (Group)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”), | would like to present herewith the 2009
Annual Report of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the year, the Group has focused all of its efforts on
strengthening the cooperation with the two major strategic
customers, reinforcing the all-rounded promotion of the first-
and second-generation Runpos products and investing in the
market research and product design for the third-generation
products. With the best endeavours of all employees, the first-
and second-generation Runpos products are now available for
sales in 15 provinces and cities nationwide as compared with
7 last year with the amount of sales increased by 127%. As
the coordination between the project teams of the two parties
involved in the development of the third-generation products
was basically completed, the technological research and
development, the design of platform and the pilot operation
at the provincial level have already commenced. The Group
believes that the low-cost but highly-efficient products offered
under the Runpos series will be welcomed by all customers
in the next few years, and will secure a long-term and stable
growth of the Group's operation and services income in the
financial payment sector.

Banking Business

Under the influence of the financial tsunami, the whole banking
sector has tightened up its control on the liquidity risks through
and through, resulting in increasing demand for the Group’s
products for liquidity risk management. The Group also conducted
research and analysis into the development of the market for the
last three years. The emergence of special joint-equity banks,
the personalization of commercial bank services in cities and
the diversification of innovative functions encouraged the in-
house research and development of products, and helped the
Group maintain the leading strategic position of its core
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREFE

Banking Business (Continued)

banking business in the market in which it had the largest
market share in the past few years. New business and products
emerged in the payment industry achieved the expected result.
In particular, our cooperation with the two major customers
continues to develop in all aspects. Bank-college Express
from the original education business has been incorporated
into the third-generation Runpos products so as to enhance
its competitiveness.

Future Outlook

As proved by our practical experience, the market prospects of
our two principal businesses, capital and payment, are bright
and promising. The key is to continuously strengthen our close
cooperation with the two major strategic customers and various
banks and step up our efforts in the promotion and application
of our products in various industries. The Group will continue
its strategy of “conducting the market research three years in
advance, carrying out technological research and development
two years in advance and entering the market six months in
advance” with a view to maintaining a long-term, stable and
effective development of the Group.

The Group will continue its endeavors to reinforce the measures
to generate income and reduce expenditure, especially to
increase its efforts in broadening sources of income and
promoting the innovative and professional services. The Group
will also strengthen the risk precautions and on-going monitoring
mechanism to prevent risk in advance.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude
to all the shareholders who have been rendering their support
to the Group, and all the staff who have been so dedicated
and have been working so hard. In addition, | would also like
to express my sincere thanks to the customers, cooperation
partners, suppliers and bankers for their confidence and trust
in the Group.

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

26 March 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®ED M

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and
sales of information and network technologies and services
to the financial industry in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (“the financial year”), the
Group recorded a total turnover of approximately RMB41,417,000,
representing an increase of 127% as compared to last year (last
year turnover were approximately RMB18,214,000).
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Turnover of the Group comprises of: AEBREEREOIE
Turnover
E
2009 2008
—EBEAE —TT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETT
Sales of software NHHE 1,652 980
Sales of hardware e i 14,097 2,995
Maintenance and other services income HERETRBKA 25,668 14,239
41,417 18,214

The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
approximately RMB1,302,000 for the financial year, a significant
change from net loss to net profit as compared to last year (net
loss for last year was approximately RMB4,240,000). Increase
in turnover is one of the factors leading to the change from
net loss to net profit.

We will continue trying our best to increase sales and strengthen
our cost control. With the products of our group becoming more
mature in the market and the effective cost control, we expect
that financial results of the group will be further improved in
the coming year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®ED M

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL
STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s bank loans amounted to
approximately RMB18.6 million (2008: RMB16.8 million) which
bear interest at rate of Hong Kong Dollar Inter Bank Offered
Rate plus 2.75% per annum. (2008: Hong Kong Dollar Inter
Bank Offered Rate plus 2.75% per annum)

No interest was capitalized by the Group during the year
(2008: Nil).

As at 31 December 2009, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK dollars,
amounted to approximately RMB5.1 million. (2008: RMB2.8
million)

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over
total assets, as at 31 December 2009 was approximately 94%
(2008: 102%).

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies, or significant investments
during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Saved as disclosed on note 4 of the notes to the financial
statements, no segmental information is presented for the Group
as the Group conducts its business within one geographical
and business segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®ED M

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had 119 employees (2008: 90
employees), including both the PRC and Hong Kong employees.
Remuneration and bonus policy are basically determined by
the performance of the individual employees and financial
results of the Group. Total staff costs for the year amounted
to approximately RMB8.1 million (2008: RMB7 million).

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which
were set out in the Report of the Directors.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, the Group did not have any charges
on group assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group’s future plans for material investments
or capital assets and their expected source of funding have
been stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August
2001 under the sections headed “Statement of Business
Objectives” and “Reasons for the New Issue and Use of
Proceeds” respectively.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATION

The Group’s revenue generating operations are mainly transacted
in RMB. The directors consider the impact of foreign exchange
exposure to the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2008: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®ED M

PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS

Please refer to the Chairman’s Statement for a discussion on
this.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE IH{EEEMNHKEHME
GROUP
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—BEThE —ZENF e e ZEERF “TTHEF
+=A=+-B +—A=+—-8 +ZA=+—-8 +-A=+-8 +-A=1+—8
LLEE HFE HFE LFE LFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N R ARETT ARETFTT ARETFTT ARETTT
Turnover SHEWA 41,417 18,214 29,719 21,377 11,276
Profit/(loss) attributable to  RREEM AT/ (EE)
shareholders 1,302 (4,240) 1,195 (16,151) (37,221)
Total assets BEAE 36,432 25,380 32,687 27,160 41,894
Total liabilities BEAE (34,282) (25,948) (44,731) (41,713) (40,595)
Net assets/(liabilities) LE/(BE)FE 2,150 (568) (12,044) (14,553) 1,299
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEHEBREF

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2009 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

47% (2008: 32%)
96% (2008: 84%)

Sales

— the largest customer 27% (2008: 24%)
— five largest customers combined 60% (2008: 53%)
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major

suppliers or customers stated above.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

———

=

E 5 N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai, aged 65, the Chairman of our Group and
the director of Strategic Development Committee. Mr. Hung,
who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of Music, is also
among the founders of the Group. He is in possession of more
than 20 years’ company management and strategy programming
experience and over 10 years’ successful experience in
managing high-tech companies; hence he is familiar with the
China business management and marketing planning. Mr.
Hung is now in charge of the Group’s macro-strategy and the
enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 56, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. Mr. Cui is one of the founders of Hangzhou Singlee
Software Co., Ltd. and has been working for our Group since
its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui is responsible for the investment
programming of the Group. Before joining the Group, he used
to work for China Hangzhou Automatization Research Institute
and Hangzhou Huayuan Computer Application Research Institute
as director and president of their Developing Departments.

Mr. Xu, Shu Yi, aged 45, a Director of our Group. Mr. Xu acquired
professional accountant qualification in 1995 in China. Mr. Xu
has over 26 years’ company financing and executive director’s
experience in various industries like real estate developing,
hotel industry and food-manufacturing industry. He is now
taking charge of the Group’s financial strategy and planning
of our Group.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
AND AUDITING COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, JP, aged 62, an independent non-executive
director of the Group and Chairman of the Auditing Committee.
He is also an independent non-executive director of a number
of public companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. PAO was
elected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong
Kong in 1982 and one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of
the World in 1983. He was also an ex-Urban Councilor. In the
past 20 years plus, he has been actively serving on government
policy committees and statutory bodies, especially those of
town planning, urban renewal, public housing, culture and arts
and environment matters. Mr. PAO holds a Master of Science
degree in human settlements planning & development.

Mr. Tam, Kwok Hing, aged 62, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, is the fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was the founding
partner of Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public
accounting firm in Hong Kong, set up in 1973 and is now a
consultant of the accounting firm.

Mr. Lo, King Man, aged 72, an independent non-executive
director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career in academic
administration at the University of Hong Kong and became
deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1986.
He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong Academy for
performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of Peace in Hong
Kong, and he has an extensive record of public service. He has
also served on the governing or executive bodies of numerous
educational and cultural organizations. He was appointed an
independent non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holding
Int’l Ltd. in September 1994.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang, Loong Cheong, aged 63, is the Senior Consultant
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in April 2004, he was
responsible for the sales and management, etc in certain listed
companies. Regarding to the trading and business networks
in the PRC, he has distinct and professional knowledge and
experiences. After his joining, with respect of his experiences
and strategies in the PRC, he has important contribution to
the market development of the new products.

Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 30, is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Group. He holds a Master of
Business Administration Degree in Finance from University
of Southern Queensland. He is a Hong Kong Certified Public
Accountant and the member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in June 2007,
he has accumulated over several years of accounting, auditing
and financing experience. He is now responsible for accounting
and company secretarial duties.

Mr. Qiu, Lei, aged 39, is the General Manager of Hangzhou
Singlee Technology Co., Ltd. He graduated from School of
Machano-Electronic Engineering of Xidian University. Before
joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Qiu was employed in China
Zhenhua Group. Mr. Qiu had occupied the sales director
of Singlee Software (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. and the commercial
director of Hangzhou Singlee Technology Co., Ltd. etc, with

rich experiences in financial industry.
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Report of the Directors

EE®REE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are the development and
sale of information and network technologies and services to
the financial industry in the PRC.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note
16 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on page 34.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 23
to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders. At 31
December 2009, the company had no reserve available for
distribution to equity of the company (2008: Nil).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2009, shareholders (other than directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or, directly, or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote on all
circumstances at general meeting of any other members of the
Group or substantial shareholders as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST TERE &5 4)
IN SECURITIES (continued)

Number of shares held Percentage

Capacity/ Long Short of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding

54/ BEROGHE FERE

RRERE FEZEER #a y b} Aok

Goldcorp Industrial Beneficial interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
Limited BmEm (note 1)
(Kat1)

Great Song Enterprises Corporate interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
Limited EEE R (notes 1 and 2)
(KiF1k2)

Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
RERNIE A EE R (notes 2 and 4)
(KiiF2k4)

Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
FHBRZT A E S (notes 2 and 3)
(Hiat2%3)

Mdm lu Pun Family interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
i 22 + EN- 1 (note 5)

(Ktats)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST
IN SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands equally owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai and Great Song Enterprises
Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of Great
Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one third of the
voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms. Li Kei Ling is deemed, by
virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same 337,855,000 shares held
by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting power of
Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed, by virtue of the
SFO, to be interested in the same 337,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp
Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial Limited as
mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed to be interested
in the same 337,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mdm
lu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be interested
in these shares in which Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed or taken to be
interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any other
person (other than directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any other
member of the Group or any other substantial shareholders as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which he/
she is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.66 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

EERTHRARCESER

RZZTENFF+_A=Z+—8 " BEBZEHER
HE GG EXVE (D BT R FESIHAME AR
REIRBRAEBAARRESE RITHREER
AR EMEMBREEIE(ERRELRR
HE GBI EXVIB (BB EGIFES71E)) K
7 HERMREFNER(BERSIRIE
BHLHEBRNNZE B XERENE (ER
EMERNER)  IBREFBHRBEEDN
FEI2(BEERRARAETFNEEME
BIEAI ¥R E R AIE5.46E5.66(KBHE
ARARRERZFOERREREIT ¢

Shares in the Company: EARRG :
Number of shares held Percentage
Capacity/ Long Short of
Name of directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
FER™E BERE
BEEnE B9,z ER 3y bl Btk
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 337,855,000 - 50.9%
REENfE A& A R (note 1)
(Ktat1)
Shares in associated corporation: B EE RS
Number of ordinary
shares held in Goldcorp
Industrial Limited
(note 2) Percentage
Capacity/ Long Short of
Name of directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
M Goldcorp Industrial Limited
g EREE
(Hat2) BERE
BEEnE 51 REzEER iy bh ) Bok
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Personal interest 1 - 50.9%
REEITE ST (PN £
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Notes:

1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai
has 50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

2. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2009 composed of 2 ordinary shares. Goldcorp Industrial Limited held
337,855,000 Shares in the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted
on 27 August 2001, the Directors may at their discretion grant
options to employees (including Directors of the Company) of the
Group and other persons who, in the sole discretion of the board
of the Directors, have contributed to the Group (“Participants”).
The Scheme enables the Company to grant share options to
Participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group. The Scheme would be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing on the adoption date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. After
the listing of the shares on GEM, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue upon completion
of placing, capitalisation issue and say other shares to be issued
upon the exercise of the over-allotment option in connection
with the listing of the shares on GEM. According to the Scheme,
the total number of shares available for issue is 66,320,000
shares which represents 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of this annual report.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of options granted and to be granted to each Participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue at the date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The subscription shall be a price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than
the higher of the closing price of the share on the date of grant
of the option and the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the option.

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt
of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28 days
from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the board
to each grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of
10 years from the date of grant.

On 8 April 2002 the Company granted 60,230,000 options to
subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.614 per share to 163 employees
(including three executive directors) of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price HK$0.58 immediately before
the day on which options were granted.

On 1 June 2004 the Company granted 10,000,000 options to
subscribe for shares in the Company under the scheme at an
exercise price of HK$0.14 per share to 2 chief executives of the
Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price HK$0.14
immediately before the day on which options were granted.

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.36 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BREE ()

The summary details of options granted are as follows: BREZEEFHBOT
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding as  granted during exercised during cancelled during lapsed during outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period  at 1 January 2009 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2009
HEZZEAE HE-ZEMF
-A-H tZB=1+-H
EZR EXikd ERRE EREfE FREHH EREAN Xk
EEH#% TS EREZE BREHE BREHEA BREZE EREZE hE%E

Options granted on 8 April 2002
RZZZEMANRRLCBRE

Cui Jian 7 September 2002 3,180,000 - - - - 3,180,000
to 7 April 2012

#Z “EE2-ENALAEER
ZE2-EMALA

Options granted on 9 October 2007
RIFBLETANARE CERE

Chan Kam Fai 8 April 2008 6,000,000 - - - (6,000,000) -
(Note 1) to 8 October 2017
RiE ZEZ\FHANRE
(Hit1) ZE-tETANE
Continuous contract 8 April 2008 34,820,000 - - - 4,520,000) 30,300,000
employees to 8 October 2017
(other than
directors)
HEANEE “ET/\EmANRE
(E3h) ZE-+FTANA

44,000,000 - - - (10,520,000) 33,480,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Note:

1. Mr. Chan Kam Fai has tendered his resignation as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group due to his own career development with effect from
23 October 2008.

The directors consider it inappropriate to value the options
as a number of factors critical for the valuation cannot be
determined accurately. Any valuation of the options based on
various speculative assumptions would be meaningless and
misleading. Therefore the directors believe that the cost for
disclosing the value of options does not justify for the benefits
it provides.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
directors, chief executives, or their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO)
or which were required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.66
of the GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the directors, management shareholders and substantial
shareholders as herein disclosed, the directors are not aware
of any persons who as at 31 December 2009 were entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting
power at general meetings of the Company and who were able,
as a practical matter, to direct or influence the management
of the Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of
the Company and their respective associates (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which
competes with the Company or may compete with the business
of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company for the period from 1 January
2009 to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)
Cui Jian
Xu Shu Yi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Pao Ping Wing
Tam Kwok Hing
Lo King Man

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
Mr. Cui Jian and Mr. Tam Kwok Hing will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election. Mr. Hung Yung Lai, the
Chairman, will also retire from office and offer himself for re-
election in view of the provisions in paragraph A.4.2. of the
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years from their
appointment dates.

Each of the independent non-executive directors was appointed
for a period of two years commencing from their appointment
dates.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 28 of the notes to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 28 of the notes to the financial
statements, the connected transactions are exempted from the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirement
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rule 20.23.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
were audited by K.M. Choi & Au Yeung Limited who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company believes that corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and has
adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard of
corporate governance is maintained. The Company has applied
the principles and complied with the requirements set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG code”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2009 as set out in GEM Listing Rules
5.48 to 5.67. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
the securities transactions by Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company comprises:
Executive Directors Hung Yung Lai
Cui Jian

Xu Shu Yi

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pao Ping Wing
Tam Kwok Hing
Lo King Man
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year, five full board meetings were held and the
attendance of each director is set out as follows:

BEEE )

FA - ARAAFRERAEREFSSE &
BEEMHERNT :

Number of
Board meetings Attendance
Name of director attended in 2009 rate
—EZTAEHE
BEEng EEEERRE HEE
Hung Yung Lai AR RIS 5/5 100%
Cui Jian B 5/5 100%
Xu Shu Yi RETE 4/5 80%
Pao Ping Wing VRS 4/5 80%
Tam Kwok Hing W E 4/5 80%
Lo King Man EEX 3/5 60%
The board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors ZEE&H| FHEEEELEE R - ERHIG
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over RIENKRIFHEEBMNANEE  EFEK
the management. The board members are fully committed EHREBST  TESHAENMBERREERES

to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the Group’s
goals and directions with the prevailing economic and market
conditions. Daily operations and administration are delegated
to the management.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of each financial period, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flow for the period. Although the Group had
net current liabilities as at 31 December 2009, the Board does
not foresee any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
the Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the financial statements.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Hung Yung Lai. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated and
assumed by two separate individuals who have no relationship
with each other. The Chairman of the board is responsible for
the leadership and effective running of the board, while the Chief
Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to manage
the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.
Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Chan Kam Fai, no
replacement of the post of the chief executive officer has been
fixed as at 31st December 2009. The Board strives to find the
suitable candidates within and outside the Group. The Board
will keep reviewing the current structure from time to time. If
candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is
identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the post
of chief executive officer as appropriate.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a period
of two years commencing from their appointment dates. The
Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the three Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance
with rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
their independence and concluded that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent within the definition
of the GEM Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was formed in November 2005
to review the overall remuneration of Directors. One meeting
was held during the year and attendance of each member is
set out as follows:
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

EEHFM 2

Number of Attendance
Name of member meetings attended rate
24= HESBRH HE =
Hung Yung Lai, Chairman ARRIAE - ETE 1/1 100%
Pao Ping Wing RO 1/1 100%
Tam Kwok Hing R E 1/1 100%
Lo King Man EREX 1/1 100%

At the meeting held, remuneration of directors for the Company
was reviewed and discussed.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditors, K.M. Choi & Au Yeung Limited, is set
out as follows:

Services rendered

REHL EXBECHEEFMETTREK
=M -

BN =

R AR ERNEA BB RS
BERERARNMENT |

Fees paid/payable

2R g ENER
HKD’000

BT T

Audit services ZE AR T% 320
Non audit services i.e. taxation IR BRTS (BDRLTS) 0
320

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s internal control system during
the year. The Company convened meetings periodically to
discuss financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Directors are of the view that the
key areas of the Group’s internal control system are reasonably
implemented with rooms for improvement. The Group will use
its endeavor to implement changes in order to further improve
the Group’s internal control system.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 27
August 2001, with terms of reference in compliance with the
requirements as set out in Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group and to provide advice
and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Four meetings were held during the year
and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

EREEE

ARBRZEZE—FNAZ T+ AR EZ
ZEE  WIKAIER EMHRAIES5.28%5.33
BOREAEHETEBESRE FZEE
ENTIEETRRILERAEBRNTEE
WEFRADEZEGE  TREFFIRERE
EERER

ARABNERZBGBR B IIFNTE
Z-BERRBENFABRTTORER &
RE®MBFEERMT

Number of Attendance
Name of member meetings attended rate
ME HESBRE HE =
Mr. Pao Ping Wing NEREES 4/4 100%
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing RE 4/4 100%
Mr. Lo King Man ERX 3/4 75%

During the meetings held, financial results of the Company was
reviewed and discussed.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BV % B R E

5B B 7 3t EF F 85 AT A IR 8
K.M. CHOI & AU YEUNG LIMITED
[CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS)

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sing
Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 120,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B Y % B ®RE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
FAEM (RE) ROEBRAF
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 3(a)
to the financial statements which indicates that the Company
reported net current liabilities of approximately RMB6,063,000
and net liabilities of approximately RMB6,050,000 and the Group
reported consolidated net current liabilities of approximately
RMB3,194,000. These conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 3(a), indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and
only for you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

K.M. Choi & Au Yeung Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 March 2010

Choi Kwok Man
Practising certificate no.: PO1777
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEE2HEHWSZ X

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE=-ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

2009 2008
—EENFE ZTT)\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%T R | ARET T
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue HE WA 5 41,417 18,214
Cost of sales $H & A AR (31,049) (12,378)
Gross profit ER 10,368 5,836
Other operating income H fib i g A 6 2,130 1,182
Distribution costs Vol =|D N (1,943) (2,948)
Administrative expenses ERER (8,729) (7,495)
Finance costs A& KA 7 (524) (815)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBATER,(FE) 8 1,302 (4,240)
Taxation I8 9 - -
Profit/(loss) for the year from EEEFERE
continuing operations (KB (BA) 1,302 (4,240)
Discontinued operations DRI - -
Profit/(loss) for the year TEERER(BA) 1,302 (4,240)
Other comprehensive income Hap2mEkA
Exchange differences on translating MEBINERESE
foreign operations W R 1,416 657
Other comprehensive income AEFEMEEBA -
for the year, net of tax Brif 1% 1,416 657
Total comprehensive income/(loss) REEFEEEBKE
for the year (B8 # %8 2,718 (3,583)
RMB RMB
ARBEML) AR (L)
Earnings/(loss) per share BEREF,(FE) 13
From continuing operations REFELEER
Basic (cents per share) BN 0.20 (0.65)
Diluted (cents per share) e N/ATRER = N/ATERB

The notes on pages 39 to 120 form part of these financial

statements.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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Statement of Financial Position
D
B R
As at 31 December 2009 R=ZThF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &A1)
The Group The Company
PN | ENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF “EEN\E —EENF —2EN\E
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fizE ARBTL ARETTT ARETT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE  BERR 14 458 750 13 2
Intangible assets BV EE 15 4,886 7,504 - =
Investments in subsidiaries HINB AR ZEE 16 - - - -
5,344 8,254 13 2
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 17 4,922 5,314 4,872 5123
Trade and other receivables BN E 5 R E o BR SR 18 21,103 8,991 8,398 8,438
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFAEEEY 19 5,063 2,821 269 181
31,088 17,126 13,539 13,742
Current liabilities naaE
Loans and other borrowings SR E M ER 20 18,551 16,805 18,551 16,805
Trade and other payables ERE S REMER 21 15,490 8,723 1,051 8,002
Deferred income EIEWA 22 241 420 - =
(34,282) (25,948) (19,602) (24,807)
Net current liabilities nBAEFE (3,194) (8,822) (6,063) (11,065)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8f)FE 2,150 (568) (6,050) (11,063)
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Share capital A 23 6,827 6,827 6,827 6,827
Reserves i 24 (4,677) (7,395) (12,877) (17,890)
Capital surplus/(deficiency) BXBH/(FRE) 2,150 (568) (6,050) (11,063)
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors KEFEN T —ZF=A -+ ~BHER

on 26 March 2010 0 1) 2
Hung Yung Lai Xu Shu Yi
Chairman Director
FE o

The notes on pages 39 to 120 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
L EELE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE=-ZTZTNF+_A=+—HILFE
(AAR¥RET)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADAERIEEAES
Statutory
Share Share surplus  Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
EE
RA RAGE BErGRE ERG#E 2EER &it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2008 RZZTN\E
—A—H 6,271 58,148 o111 3,144 (83,220) (12,044)
Loss for the year KEEBR - - - - (4,240) (4,240)
Other comprehensive income KEFEMEZAKBA -
for the year, net of tax BRi1E - - - 657 = 657
Total comprehensive 0ss ~EEZEBEAS
for the year - - - 657 (4,240 (3,583)
Issue of ordinary shares RAERENT
during the year TRRR M 556 14,503 - - - 15,059
At 31 December 2008 and RZEENE
1 January 2009 +ZA=+-AkK
ZEENE
—A—H 6,827 72,651 3,613 3,801 (87,460) (568)
Profit for the year KEREF - - - - 1,302 1,302
Other comprehensive income REEEMEAKA
for the year, net of tax BRE% - - - 1,416 - 1,416
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENGEE
for the year = = = 1,416 1,302 2,718
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
+-A=+—H 6,827 72,651 S16iltS 5,217 (86,158) 2,150

The notes on pages 39 to 120 form part of these financial

statements.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
e H e R E X

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE =TT NF+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR BEAL)

2009 2008
—2EAE —FINF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B AR¥TR ARETE

Cash flows from operating activities: REERBEESRE
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AT & A, (EE) 1,302 (4,240)
Adjustments for: FEE
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, LETHE BE X
plant and equipment mEZ (BF), BB (23) 7
Depreciation e 385 462
Amortisation 5 2,618 =
Borrowing costs BhE P AR 493 791
Bank interest income SRITH B UA (20) (37)

Operating profit/(loss) before changes ®E&LEEAIH

in working capital R, (FE) 4,755 (3,017)
Decrease in inventories FERDY 392 777
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FEWE 5 BRI H Ath
other receivables FEUG R (2 A0), R (12,112) 2,045
Increase/(decrease) in trade and JERTE SR R H Aty
other payables FEfF g, CRd) 6,767 (10,137)
Decrease in deferred income EFEW AR (179) (250)
Net cash used in operating activities RETETAZESTE (377) (10,582)
Cash flows from investing activities RETEZ2HERE
Bank interest income RITH B WA 20 37
Proceeds from sale of property, HETBE BEK&
plant and equipment BLLON 51 46
Acquisition of property, s~ EhE -
plant and equipment B 55 I 5% 14 (121) (437)
Acquisition of intangible assets EREES N - (1,400)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMAZESTE (50) (1,754)

The notes on pages 39 to 120 form part of these financial $39& F120B T MK BT ERE 2 —
statements. &

o
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Consolidated statement

£ X

n‘/-.ﬁ |:| IE, M7 /)ll:

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE =TT NF+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

of cash flows

2009 2008
—EEAE —ZZ)N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREBTn ARETT
Cash flows from financing activities METE2EERE
Proceeds from loans and borrowings ERREEMBERIE 1,746 =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BITRRAD FT1S 5R08 - 556
Proceeds from share premium B 17 & FT 1S 5008 - 14,503
Repayment of loan and borrowings BEERREER - (8,396)
Interest paid [EENES) (493) (791)
Net cash generated from REFEREEZ
financing activities BEFEHE 1,253 5,872
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBALEEYZ
cash equivalents #wim (GRd) B8 826 (6,464)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZzHBE&Xk
1 January HeEEY 2,821 8,628
Exchange difference on translation of MBI E BB
financial statements of foreign entities BN =R 1,416 657
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+t=ZA=+—H%2
31 December RERAESEZEY 19 5,063 2,821

The notes on pages 39 to 120 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

B %% W & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &A1)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in Bermuda on 27 October 2000 under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and its shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to
the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as
at and for the year ended 31 December 2009 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”). The Group is principally engaged in
the businesses of development, manufacture and sale
of software products, sale of related hardware products
and the provision of software-related technical support
services.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs)

The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
has issued a number of new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group.

The Group has also adopted the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations during the
year. The adoption of these standards, amendments and
interpretations has not led to any changes in the Group’s
accounting policies. There are:

IFRIC 15, “Agreement for the Construction of Real
Estate”;
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Notes to the financial statements

B % R MG

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= 2371%‘?’ A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

IFRIC 17, “Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners”;

IFRIC 18, “Transfers of Assets from Customers”;

IFRS 1 (Revised), “First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards” — Amendment relating to
cost of an investment on first-time adoption;

IFRS 1 (Revised), “First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards”
restructured;

Revised and

IFRS 2 (Revised), “Share-based Payment”
relating to vesting conditions and cancellations;

— Amendment

IFRS 2 (Revised), “Share-based Payment” — Amendments
resulting from April 2009 Annual Improvements to
IFRSs;

IFRS 3 (Revised), “Business Combinations” — Comprehensive
revision on applying the acquisition method;

IFRS 5 (Revised), “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”
May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs;

— Amendments resulting from

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
FAEM (RE) ROEBRAF
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Notes to the financial statements

B %% W& MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &A1)

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

IFRS 7 (Revised), “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
Amendments enhancing disclosures about fair value and
liquidity risk;

IFRS 8, “Operating Segments”;

IAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements” —
Comprehensive revision including requiring a statement
of comprehensive income;

IAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements” —
Amendments relating to disclosure of puttable instruments
and obligations arising on liquidation;

IAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements” —
Amendments resulting from May 2008 Annual Improvements
to IFRSs;

IAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment” — Amendments
resulting from May 2008 Annual Improvements to

IFRSs;

IAS 19, “Employee Benefits” — Amendments resulting from
May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs;

IAS 20, “Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance” — Amendments resulting from May 2008 Annual
Improvements to IFRSs;

2. BRANFHE] RARIEET
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Notes to the financial statements

B %% W& MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= 2371%‘?’ A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

IAS 23, “Borrowing Costs”
prohibit immediate expensing;

— Comprehensive revision to

IAS 23, “Borrowing Costs” — Amendments resulting from
May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs;

IAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” — Consequential amendments arising from

amendments to IFRS 3;

IAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” — Amendment relating to cost of an investment

on first-time adoption;

IAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” — Amendment resulting from May 2008 Annual
Improvements to IFRSs;

IAS 28, “Investment in Associates” — Consequential
amendments arising from amendments to IFRS 3;

IAS 28, “Investment in Associates” — Amendments resulting

from May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs;

IAS 29, “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”
— Amendments resulting from May 2008 Annual Improvements
to IFRSs;

IAS 31, “Interests in Joint Ventures” — Consequential
amendments arising from amendments to IFRS 3;

IAS 31, “Interests in Joint Ventures” — Amendments resulting
from May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs;
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Notes to the financial statements

B %% W& MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &A1)

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

IAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation” — Amendments
relating to puttable instruments and obligations arising
on liguidation;

IAS 36, “Impairment of Assets” — Amendments resulting
from May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs;

IAS 38, “Intangible Assets”
May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs;

— Amendments resulting from

IAS 38, “Intangible Assets”
April 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRSs;

— Amendments resulting from

IAS 39,
Measurement”
Annual Improvements to IFRSs;

“Financial Instruments: Recognition and

— Amendments resulting from May 2008

IAS 39,
Measurement” —

“Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Amendments for eligible hedged items;

IAS 39,
Measurement”

“Financial Instruments: Recognition and
— Amendments for embedded derivatives
when reclassifying financial instruments;

IAS 40, “Investment Property” — Amendments resulting

from May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs; and

IAS 41, “Agriculture”
2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs.

— Amendments resulting from May
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Notes to the financial statements

B % W® & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= 2371%‘?’ A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2009 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. The following
standards, amendments and interpretations were issue
but not effective:

IFRIC 19, “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments” (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2010);

IFRS 1 (Revised), “First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards” — Amendments relating to
oil and gas assets and determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease (effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2010);

IFRS 1 (Revised), “First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards” — Limited Exemption from
Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2010);

IFRS 2, “Share-based Payment” — Amendments relating
to group cash-settled share-based payment transactions
(effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010);

IFRS 5 (Revised), “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” — Amendments resulting from
April 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRSs (effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010);

IFRS 8, “Operating Segments” — Amendments resulting
from April 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRSs (effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010);
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Notes to the financial statements

B %% W & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &A1)

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” — Classification and
Measurement (effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2013);

IAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements” —
Amendments resulting from April 2009 Annual Improvements
to IFRSs (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010);

IAS 7, “Statement of Cash Flows” — Amendments resulting
from April 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRSs (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010);

IAS 17, “Leases” — Amendments resulting from April 2009
Annual Improvements to IFRSs (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010);

IAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures” — Revised definition
of related parties (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2011);

IAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation” — Amendments
relating to classification of rights issues (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010);

IAS 36, “Impairment of Assets”
from April 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRSs (effective

— Amendments resulting

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010);

and
IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” — Amendments resulting from April 2009

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010).
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Notes to the financial statements

B %% W& MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (HE=ZTZTNF+_A=1T—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEgstHBX

a)

Material uncertainties relating to the
going concern basis

At 31 December 2009, the Group had consolidated
net current liabilities of approximately RMB3,194,000.
At 31 December 2009, the Company had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB6,063,000 and net
liabilities of approximately RMB6,050,000.

The directors are of the opinion that the Company
and the Group are able to continue as a going
concern and to meet their obligations in full as and
when they fall due. In view of the liquidity problems
faced by the Company and the Group, the directors
have adopted the following measures with a view
to improve the Company’s and the Group’s overall
financial and cash flow position and to maintain the
Company’s and the Group’s existence on a going
concern basis:

(i) Attainment of profitable and positive
cash flow operations

The directors continue to implement cost control
measures over overheads and various general and
administrative expenses, and are actively seeking
new investment and business opportunities with
an aim to attain profitable and positive cash
flow operations.

(ii) Ongoing financial support by the controlling
shareholder of the Company

Mr. Hung Yung Lai, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, has undertaken
to the Company to provide continuous financial
support to the Company and the Group so
as to enable the Company and the Group to
continue its day-to-day operations as a viable
going concern notwithstanding any present or
future financial difficulties experienced by the
Company and the Group.
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Notes to the financial statements

5B WK N

(For the year ended 31 December 2009  E_EENFT_A=+T—RHLLEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR BEAL)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

a)

b)

Material uncertainties relating to the
going concern basis (Continued)

(iii) Additional external funding

The directors are considering various alternatives
to strengthen the capital base of the Company
and the Group through various fund raising
exercises.

In the opinion of the directors, in light of the
measures taken to date, together with expected
results of other measures in progress, the
Company and the Group will have sufficient
cash resources to satisfy its future working
capital and other financial requirements, and
it is reasonable to expect the Company and
the Group to return to a commercially viable
going concern. Accordingly, the directors are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
financial statements on a going concern basis,
notwithstanding the Company’s and the Group’s
financial and liquidity position as at 31 December
20009.

Should the Company and the Group be unable
to continue as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to restate the value of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in the financial statements.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”). These
financial statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the applicable disclosure provisions of the
GEM.
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Notes to the financial statements

B %% oK K

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (&%=
(Expressed in Renminbi)

=

ot
SEEAFICAS+—ALER)
(LAANBRHEBERL)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

c)

d)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the revaluation of
certain non-current assets and financial instruments.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the financial statements

3% W o M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (L/U\E"%?%Eu)

,23n¢+ A=t—HILFEE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE(£)
(Continued)
d) Basis of consolidation (Continued) d HFEEE(E)

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries are identified
separately from the Group’s equity therein. The
interests of non-controlling shareholders may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to
acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the financial statements

B % oK MO

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (HE=ZTZTNF+_A=1T—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained earnings) in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity.
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Notes to the financial statements

3% W o M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (L/U\E"%?%Eu)

,23n¢+ A=t—HILFEE)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. EEEHBE(E)

W A TERR

JJIIP

e) Revenue recognition e)

(i) Sale of goods (i) ‘Efu‘f'zflé'g

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when mRTEE TFI AT

all the following conditions are satisfied:

AEBEERERESR
B2 ERRRKE R
EBRTER Bk E
@#&Zﬁiﬁyﬂlﬁi |

o The Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods. Transfers of risks and rewards
vary depending on the individual terms

of the contract of sale. Transfer usually EA K Z @RI R -

occurs when the product is received at B B K 5] ) 8 R E

the customer’s premises; X P 3% P UCER EE an By
Hi5

The Group retains neither continuing e AEEBEVERE K

managerial involvement to the degree HEEEBEHECEE

usually associated with ownership nor EmBEETERIE

effective control over the goods sold;

PRIZ I

The amount of revenue can be measured o W R A MR FEE
reliably; =

e |t is probable that the economic benefits o HEXZHEEZLEF
associated with the transaction will flow =R EEMAZES
to the entity; and &

e  The costs incurred or to be incurred in o BEARIELERBE
respect of the transaction can be measured A 2 PCAS AT DA AT SR
reliably. £ o
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Notes to the financial statements

B %% oK K

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (&%=
(Expressed in Renminbi)

2

ot
—PEASTAS+—BLER)
(LAANBRHEBERL)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

e)

f)

9)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii) Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services
is recognized by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract. Revenue from
provision for maintenance and other services
is initially recognized as deferred income and
is amortised in statement of comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the term

of the service period.

Other operating income

(i) Value added tax refunds

Value added tax refunds are recognized when
the acknowledgement of refunds from the tax
bureau has been received.

(ii) Interest income on bank deposits

Interest income is recognised as it accrues,
using the effective interest method.

Leasing

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Lease
incentives received are recognized as an integral
part of the total lease expense, over the term of the
lease. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements

3% W o M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009)

,23n¢+ A=t—HILFEE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (L/U\E"%?%Eu)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

g)

h)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets.
Contingent lease payments are accounted for by
revising the minimum lease payments over the
remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment
is confirmed.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group
entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(its functional currency). For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and
financial position of each group entity are expressed
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency
of the Company and the presentation currency for
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual
entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

h)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise except for:

° Exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included
in the costs of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

° Exchange differences on transactions entered
into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks; and

° Exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initial in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net
investment.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are expressed in RMB using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

i)

i)

k)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Share-based payments

The grant date fair value of options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the options. The amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of share options that vest.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

k)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The fair value of the amount payable to employees
in respect of share appreciation rights, which are
settled in cash, is recognised as an expense, with
corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period
in which the employees become unconditionally
entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at
each reporting date and at settlement date. Any
changes in the fair value of the liability are recognized
as personnel expense in statement of comprehensive
income.

Short-term employee benefit

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured
on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided.

A provision is recognized for the amount expected
to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-
sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on funds
invested, dividend income, and foreign currency gains
that are recognised in statement of comprehensive
income. Dividend income is recognised on the
date that the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on
borrowings, foreign currency losses that are recognised
in statement of comprehensive income. All borrowing
costs are recognised in statement of comprehensive
income using the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

n)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax expense is recognised in statement
of comprehensive income except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet
method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised
for the following temporary differences: the initial
recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit, and differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
is measured at the tax rates that are expected to
be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 3(q)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised
as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in statement of comprehensive income on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the
part will flow to the Group and its cost can be
measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in statement of comprehensive
income as incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of each part of an
item of property, plant and equipment. Leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are two to five years.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date.

p) Intangible assets

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each annual reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

Internally-generated intangible assets -
research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development (or from the development
phase of an internal project) is recognised
if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible
asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the
intangible assets; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during
its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

p) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Internally-generated intangible assets
- research and development expenditure
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

(iv) Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation is recognised in statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets, other than goodwill, from the date that
they are available for use. The estimated useful
lives for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:

capitalised development costs
software

3 — 5 years
5 years

Amortisation method and useful life of the
intangible assets are reviewed periodically to
ensure that the method and period of amortisation
are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from the intangible assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

a)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generated unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generated units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generated units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

a)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets excluding goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generated unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimated of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate
portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses,
are assigned to inventories by the method most
appropriate to the particular class of inventory, with
the majority being valued on the weighted average
costing method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary

to make the sale.

3. EXSFBERE)

a)

BREREFVEERE(EHE
BRSM) (A&

Mt EE 2R E SR (KRR
EEEM)EREREE BEEZ
REE(KREEEEM)KAR
EHAKRO S - BER IR

REBESER  WEBEENER
TRIR - BEBEIKRSE
e e

B EBRERATRD  BEZ
FEHE(XRSELEM)RAD
EHEETAF 2 RESHE
T BEZEE(AREES
B )BERGBERERN < RE
B BEZREBRIRENER
R WMEEEENELESRBRI
R BEZREBEIERSE
fEIB M -

&

GFERKARASEFEMER
EESER o AN (R IEEE &) &
KEMRAX 2EERD ) R&ER
REGERN A EZEIRTF
B EE2RMETEEFE A
BIFEDIRTFE G S ERA
EEETHRBEENE 2K
RNEtE o

Annual Report 2009
SNFER

=

63




Notes to the financial statements

B %% W® ok K

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (&%=

Q__\
at

“EEAFE+-A=+—BRLFE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

s)

t)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimated can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the

present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts
are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the
Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
under it.

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3(q)).
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Notes to the financial statements

3% W o M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009)
(Expressed in Renminbi)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

u)

v)

Trade and other receivable

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 3(w)(ii)), except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 3(w)(ii)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flow.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and derecognized
on trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the financial asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction
costs, except for those financial assets classified as
at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially
measured at fair value.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (HE=-ZTZTNF+_A=1T—HILFE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

w) Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets “at fair value
through profit or loss” (“FVTPL”), “held-to-maturity”
investments, “available-for-sale” (“AFS”) financial

assets and “loans and receivables”. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables
that have fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as “loans and receivables”. Loans
and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment. Interest income is recognised
by apply the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (L/U\E"%?%Eu)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. EXSFBERE)

w) EREEE)

w) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) EHEERE
ERMEE(RAREFAR

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are

assessed for indicators of impairment at the end mZERMEERIN RS W
of each reporting period. Financial assets are FEHRFEEESREDR °
considered to be impaired when there is objective e BEBIBRETEAY P

REMEERTE—HAE
BHEHZERBKRE 2G5
RKBFEERE  BleMEE
RAERE -

evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the investment have been affected.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 360 days, as

BETEIZEREE
MEKEZERF)ME - Y
RABATEEBHRRE
ZEBE  BRESAFRUE
ERRBH ERMEE  —
PFRFERE - B E R UAR X
HEETEAHBARMEZEEE
%@ﬁ%ﬁéﬂﬁZ%ﬁE
B~ BB K E B BI60K

ZFBEERZ REBEM
NMEMEBZR S E 2 KK
ARHIREZGERERE

well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

R EE) -
The carrying amount of the financial asset is REZERERZ REES
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all BEEBRBE AR - FTE2
financial assets with the exception of trade BEERBEBEEEZERE
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced IREERR © WE 5 ERER
through the use of an allowance amount. When HERATEEWE - ZERK
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, TR EBE S o BiE

REZEEEEINESRA

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously TR o

it is written off against the allowance account.

written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

X)

y)

z)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities,
trade and other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are disclosed
in note 32.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group.

ii) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

iiiy the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;
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Notes to the financial statements

3% W o M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) 72371?‘?' A=+—HIEFE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (L/U\E"%?%Eu)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3. EXSFBERE)

(Continued)
z) Related parties (Continued) z) BEERH (&)
iv) the party is a member of key management V) ZARAREEFIAEESR
personnel of the Group or the Group’s AZEEEEERKRES Lk
parent, or a close family member of such an MAT 2R - X Bt A
individual, or is an entity under the control, TiES - HEEG SKERY
joint control or significant influence of such B
individuals;
v)  the party is a close family member of a party V) EZHEiY(')FﬁLAiZL
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the oA LTES
control, joint control or significant influence ZHIHERTE 2B j&
of such individuals; or
vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan vi) #ZAARARSEENEMAEE
which is for the benefit of employees of the HEALZREEXZ= ZRIK
Group or of any entity that is a related party @HIErEl -
of the Group.
Close family members of an individual are those —BATZERERRERES
family members who may be expected to influence, BARKAZEZATHEZA
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings THEBIZREXE °
with the entity.
aa) Earnings/(loss) per share aa) REF (&)
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings/ AEERELTARME ERER

(loss) per share data for its ordinary shares.
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
dividing the earnings/(loss) attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
is determined by adjusting the earnings/(loss)
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, which comprise share options
granted to employees.

BEAREERR(BE)8IE -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

bb) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregate if they share a majority of these criteria.

4. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment

information is chosen as the primary reporting format
because this is more relevant to the Group in making
operating and financial decisions.

a)

Business segment

Throughout the year, the Group has been operating
in a single business segment, i.e. the development,
manufacture and sale of software products, sale of
related hardware products and provision of software-
related technical services. Accordingly, no business
segment information is presented.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

4. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4., DEEW(E
b) Geographical segment b) &% 3P
As the Group’s revenue and results were substantially HRAEENBRAREEKRE S
derived from the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) RAEARLME(HRE])E
and its operating assets and liabilities are also based A MEKLEEERBBINAF
in the PRC, no geographical segment information is Bl &AM - WEZ5ME D EE
presented. #} o
5. REVENUE 5. SHEWA
The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of AEEFZENSEMHERRAE ER
development, manufacture and sale of software products, SHE - 5B AR (& fm RIR L B4
sale of related hardware products and provision of software- BRI E R FFES - A - TREIAR
related technical support services. Revenue, which is also EEEXRE  BREFEREREE
the Group’s turnover, represents the net invoiced value REMBRBEENRA - EXELBE
of sales and revenue from provision for maintenance SHEM - WRNBREERE SITINER
and other services. Turnover excludes sales taxes and is BARR - XEBRADHTAT :

stated after allowances for returns and trade discounts.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

The Group
AEH
2009 2008
—EBhE —ZTT)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Sale of computer software $HE I B 1,652 980
Sale of computer hardware ﬁﬁ%?&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ 14,097 2,995

Provision for maintenance and R AEE R
other services H b AR %5 25,668 14,239
41,417 18,214
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I

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (&%=
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

23h¢+ A=t—HILFE)

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. H&EWA
The Group
REE
2009 2008
—eenE —EENF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Sundry income B A 720 556
Written back of trade and JFE 1T T 5L fth 8 < 35 [0 8%
other payables 1,092 =
Exchange gain E R as - 500
Value added tax refunds R EIEER 208 89
Interest income on bank deposits RITFAF B A 20 37
2,130 1,182
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. UBER
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EEAE ZEZETN\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Interest on bank advances and HFRAFANETEHEEZ
other borrowings wholly RITBR K
repayable within five years B a2 F & 493 791
Others H A, 31 24
Finance expenses B2 524 815
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B %% W® & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (Eﬁzﬂfzﬂzhi‘% A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 8. BRREBAAR (FHE)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging BREATRF, (EE)EMKRTHIER -

the following:

The Group
REE
2009 2008
—EEREFE —ZZTT)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT

Staff costs (including directors’ BIXNA(BEESHESR)
remuneration)

— salaries, wages and other benefits — %% + TE R EMEF 7,182 6,375
- contributions to defined — R EHERETE 2 HR
contribution plans 963 660
8,145 7,035
Auditors’ remuneration % 24 B B <& 282 268
Depreciation of property, plant THE  BELZEINE
and equipment 385 462
Amortisation 5y 2,618 =
(Profit)/loss on disposal of LERNBE - BEK&BE
property, plant and equipment 2 (BF) /BB (23) 7
Operating lease charges: KEHEER : xIEHEE
minimum lease payments
- property rental —HAWmE 1,041 1,349
Cost of inventories sold and ELFERE
services rendered* RAERS 2B A" 31,049 12,378
& Cost of inventories sold and services rendered includes staff costs of # EHFERDRERB K ABIEET
approximately RMB4,532,505 (2008: RMB2,634,050) and depreciation BA# AR #¥4,532,5057t( ZF TN\
expenses of approximately RMB68,318 (2008: RMB55,023) that are F: AR¥2,634,0507L)  ITEERLD
also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately AR¥B8,318T(=ZEZENF : AR¥
above for each of these types of expenses. 55,0237C) ' B &t A bt & & 5 58 R

ERRTREZEEN -
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9. TAXATION

a)

b)

Overseas income tax

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda and is
exempt from taxation in Bermuda until 28 March
2016. The Company’s subsidiary established in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) is incorporated under
the International Business Companies Acts of the
BVI and, accordingly, is exempt from payment of
BVI income taxes.

Hong Kong profits tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no estimated assessable profits
arising from Hong Kong during the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2008.

PRC enterprise income tax

9. ®E

a)

b)

BN G

ARBIRBEREFMAT - W
BRERNBRECHEEZE T —
NEZAZ+N\B e ARERHE
B2 RS (BFEIBVI]) B 2 M
B A a B IEBVIBI R ¥ A R ARE
ek - Eit - e ABVIZER
155 -

HRNER
HRAEERBE_ZTAFR

—EENE+-_B=+—HItF
EHRTEEESEER R m

A WK R EBFIEH -
SalETbE SR
2009 2008
—22hE  “TTN\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T | ARBTRE

B ESH

PRC enterprise income

Foreign investment enterprises that incorporated in
the Advance Technology Industry Development Area
in Hangzhou City and Zhuhai City are entitled to full
exemption from income tax for two years with effect
from its first profitable year after offsetting prior years’
losses and a 50% reduction in income tax for the
following three years thereafter. Foreign investment
enterprises are also exempted from income tax in
years with financial loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

9. TAXATION (Continued) 9. BHIE(E)

c) PRC enterprise income tax (Continued)

The reconciliation of statutory tax rate to effective
tax rate is as follows:

c) EIERMES (&)

EEM K EERBR X 2 #E
T

2009 2008
ZEThE —TI)N\F
RMB'000 = RMB'000
ARBTR  AESTI

Accounting profit/(loss) BRE AR, (E518)

before taxation 1,302 (4,240)
Tax at the statutory tax AT E33%

rate (33%) FTE MR IE 430 (1,399)
(Set-off against)/absorbed (¥88), /WA

into tax losses WIEE 1R (430) 1,399
Tax expense HIEMAX - =

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).

BE-FEAFT-A=t-BLLF
ERREARRBBERA TN
) o
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ?371%‘?’ A=+—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEM <
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 BREBEBBRREHFEI6HERE 2 ES
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: MemT :
2009
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
- 1.1 RKEA
ik RENF R BE- L3 @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR AR®TR  AR®Tx

Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors:
Mr. Pao Ping Wing ARETE 63 - - 63
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEELE 63 - - 63
Mr. Lo King Man BEENEE 63 - - 63
Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Cui Jian EEEE - 63 3 66
Mr. Xu Shu Vi REFELE - 63 3 66
Mr. Hung Yung Li FRRIS A - 63 3 66

189 189 9 387
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 10. EE#M & (&)

2008
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e 2=H RKAER
e  KREDHR AT AR st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  AREBTT ARETT ARETET

Independent non-executive ~ BIUIFFHITES :

directors:

Mr. Pao Ping Wing AR EE 63 - - 63

Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEE LA 63 - - 63

Mr. Lo King Man EEXEE 63 - - 63
Executive directors: WITES:

Mr. Cui Jian ERGAE — 63 4 67

Mr. Xu Shu Yi hirgLsE - 63 - 63

Mr. Hung Yung Li RRRME LA - 63 4 67

189 189 8 386
For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, no HE_ZTTNFR_ZETN\F+ZA=
emolument was paid to the directors as an inducement T—RHIEFE - WERERE S TN
to join or upon joining the Company or as compensation SERRSI IMARAR A INARR G F
for loss of office. None of directors waived or agreed to RS IERBREEETRBE 2EE - 7
waive any remuneration for the years ended 31 December BMEZREXRAEBERRPBE_ZZNSF
2009 and 2008. FZZEZENF+_A=T—HLFEZ
ERIEE -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= — 2371%‘?’ A=+—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 11. REHF AL
EMOLUMENTS
For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, none HE_ZTTNEFR-ZZNF+A=
of the five individuals with the highest emoluments is a T—HLEEE AEmRFATHIIE
director. The aggregate emoluments in respect of the five EF - AR(ZEZNE : AR)&eH
(2008: five) individuals with the highest emoluments are AT ZEBBRERNT -
as follows:

2009 2008
—22hE “TETN\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T | ARBTRE

Salaries, allowances and benefits e ERREYH R
in kind 1,317 1,368
Retirement benefits scheme R ORAE F FT 2 K
contributions 144 45
1,461 1,413
The emoluments of five (2008: five) individuals with the MeeBNFTINENzER(ZEE
highest emoluments are within the following bands: NE: AR )EEFALTZIAEET :

Number of individuals
A

2009 2008

—EZAF ZTT)N\F

Nil — RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to == AR¥1,000,0007C

approximately HK$1,136,000) (B 491,136,000/ 7T ) 5 5
For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, no HE_TTZNFR_ZETZNF+_A=
emolument was paid by the Group to the five highest paid T—RLEEE  AEEYERN AR
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the FALTZIMEERRSI INARAR B
Group or as compensation for loss of office. MARR B 2 RMSIERREEER

B2 A -

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
AT (RE) ROBRAF




Notes to the financial statements

B %% W & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

12. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. XA T BRREEER (&

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY B)

The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders ARRBRREGGEEMBIEABRAR

of the Company includes a profit of RMB4,983,000 (2008: #4,983,000L( ZEZENF : AR

RMB8,961,000 loss) which has been dealt with in the 8,961,000 E518) * E R AR R B 7%

financial statements of the Company. WMRABE o

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BREF (F#E)

a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share a) BREAXZBERN(FHE)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share ERELRR 7T‘ | (E18) TR &
is based on the profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary FRNARAIEBERFTA AEN
equity holders of the Company of RMB1,302,000 aF (FEiE) A R¥E1,302,000
profit (2008: RMB4,240,000 loss) and the weighted TEIMZZEENF: AR ”r%%
average of 663,200,000 (2008: 658,823,560) ordinary 4,240,000CE5 18 ) KB BT E B
shares in issue during the year. beﬂﬁ§41ﬂ35&663,200,000Hx(__

T T )\ F : 658,823,5600% ) &t
g .

b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share b) SREERF (FE)
No disclosure of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for HRARA 2R ATTHEERES
the years ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December REEXE BUTERE#ZE—
2008 is shown as the Company’s outstanding share EENF+_A=+—BER=F
options have antidilutive effect. ENF+_A=+—HBHLEFEZ

SREERM,(BHE) -
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(AAR¥RENT)

ZEZJLK%— A=t—HILFE)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. T HE - MERKE

Notes to the financial statements

I

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (EHZE—
(Expressed in Renminbi)

The Group REH
Computer Other
Leasehold and related office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE BRK Hity
MEEE HERE BAERE B At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARETT ARETT AR%Tr ARETR
Cost ﬁEZF
At 1 January 2008 “ZEN\¥-A-H 2,861 9,005 3,410 989 16,265
Additions igbu - 274 163 - 437
Disposals e - (6,799) (1,580) 43) (8,422)
At 31 December 2008 and RZZENF
1 January 2009 TZA=t-Bk
“ETNF-A—A 2,861 2,480 1,993 946 8,280
Additions 21 - 112 9 - 121
Reclassification EDx - 583 (583) - -
Disposals E (507) - (208) (53) (768)
At 31 December 2009 RZBERE
+=ZA=t-AH 2,354 3,175 1,211 893 7,633
Accumulated depreciation BHHERAERER
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2008 —ZZ\$-HA-H 2,861 8,527 3,163 886 15,437
Charge for the year REHEN - 332 95 35 462
Written back on disposals REEEE - (6,683) (1,652) (34) (8,369)
At 31 December 2008 and “ZENF
1 January 2009 +_H =+-8k
“EENF-A—A 2,861 2,176 1,606 887 7,530
Charge for the year AEHEN - 95 231 59 385
Reclassification EDx - 583 (583) - -
Written back on disposals TR (507) - (180) (53) (740)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE 2,354 2,854 1,074 893 7,175
t=A=+-H
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2009 RZBEAF+ZA=+-H - 321 137 - 458
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE+_A=+—H - 304 387 59 750

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
FAEM (RE) ROEBRAF




Notes to the financial statements

B %% W® & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= 2371?‘?’ A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. T BE  BERRZKEE)

(Continued)
The Company VNN
Computer and
related equipment
B REBEERE
2009 2008
—EEBhE —ZET)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARSTR  AR®TT
Cost 2%
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 77 80
Exchange adjustment bE 3 3 B - (5)
Additions 30 13 2
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H© 90 77
Accumulated depreciation R2EWE
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 75 79
Exchange adjustments bE 3 3 B - (5)
Charge for the year A A0 2 1
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H© 77 75
Net book value REEE
At 31 December R+—_HA=+—H 13 2
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Notes to the financial statements

I

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# % 2371%‘?’ A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. BLEE
The Group rEH
Development
Goodwill costs Software Total
Sk HEEMR nH &t

RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARMTR ARW®TR

Cost A
At 1 January 2008 R—_ZENF—A—H 272 11,489 939 12,700
Additions #n - 1,400 = 1,400
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF
and 1 January 2009 +-A=+—8k
—EENF—-H—H 272 12,889 939 14,100
Disposals HEE - (309) - (309)
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBENE
+=A=+—-H 272 12,580 939 13,791
Accumulated Rt BT R EEE
amortisation
and impairment
losses
At 1 January 2008 R-_ZEZNFE—F—H 272 5,385 939 6,596
Amortisation for the year INE - = = =
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF
and 1 January 2009 +-A=+—Hk
—EENF—-HA—H 272 5,385 939 6,596
Amortisation for the year AN g = 2,618 = 2,618
Disposals HEE - (309) - (309)
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBENE
+=A=+—-H 272 7,694 939 8,905
Net book value BREZEE
At 31 December 2009 R-EEAF
+=B=+-8 = 4,886 - 4,886
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF
+-A=+—H - 7,504 = 7,504

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
FAEM (RE) ROEBRAF




Notes to the financial statements

B %% W® & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 5. B, EE (&)

a) Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the a) BWEDERBRKABARNSEER
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair WKWE LR AR EE  AER
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent SABERATEFEMLERZ
liabilities of the acquiree. EFE o

b) Development costs represent new software products b) HEEREAEEANIHE 2
internally developed by the Group. Software represents BAFEm o B s I B e
the cost of acquiring computer software. RN o

c) The amortisation charge for the year is included c) AFEHHHINGEEETEKRFER
in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated [TTEFZ AT -
statement of comprehensive income.

d) In 2006, the management of the Group assessed the d RZZBEERF AEBEETEE

recoverable amounts of the intangible assets. Based on
this assessment, the carrying amount of the intangible
assets was written down by RMB1,192,000, which was
disclosed on the face of the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. The recoverable amounts
have been determined on the basis of value-in-use
calculations. All value-in-use calculations are based
on past performance, management’s expectations for
the market development and certain key assumptions,
and with reference to the valuation report prepared
by an independent valuation firm.

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HEFEEZAKRE SR - RE
WIEE  BEREEREBER
M A R#1,192,0007 © RE&RA
EHEHWRZERAEE - TRESE
DIERBEABAEFEELEERE
FTBERBEFEDIEBATR
B BREEBEMSERZIHER
ETTIERR UWRBEBIHG
BRAAGRBEZEEREMED -

16. RHB LR 2 RE

The Company

b NN
2009 2008
—eenE —EENF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETRT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEET D - HEKR 6,674 6,674
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (6,674) (6,674)
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Notes to the financial statements

B % R MG

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= — 2371%‘?’ A=+—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RMiBARZBRE(E)

(Continued)
The particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 ARRRZZBEZNF+=_A=+—HZ
December 2009 are as follows: WEBARFBEIINT :

Particulars of

Place of Proportion of paid share capital/
incorporation/ ownership paid share capital/
Name of company operation interest registered capital  Principal activities
BRTRAR
B/
GRS RY/EEHE READK Eh#E IEXRH
Direct  Indirect
HE k3

Sing Lee Electronics British Virgin Islands 100% = 715 shares of  Investment holding
(B.V.I.) Co., Ltd. Islands US$1 each HARRK
(“Singlee BVI’) RERLEHE 715k ERAEE

Sing Lee Electronics 1ET 2R
(B.V.I) Co., Ltd.

(F#rFIBvIL)

Hangzhou Singlee Software The People's = 100%  Registered capital  Development, manufacture
Company Limited Republic of China US$4,325,500 and sale of software
(“Singlee Software”) (the “PRC”) 4,325,500 7 products, sale of related

mMFHEGEERAR HE AR LA FMEX  hardware products and
(T (T ]) provision of

software-related

technical services
W7 HEMHE

HhED - HER

BEAER IR

REBHEN

B PR

Hangzhou Singlee Technology The PRC = 100%  Registered capital ~ Same as above
Company Limited HE US$1,584,000 [RE
(“Singlee Technology’) 1,584,000% T

RN RERAR HMER
(FrFRE )

Singlee Software (Zhuhai) The PRC - 100%  Registered capital  Same as above
Company Limited HE US$1,250,000 Rt
(“Singlee Zhuhai”) 1,250,000% T

MAEH (K8 BRA R HMER
(I ])

Beijing Century Financial The PRC - 100%  Registered capital  Same as above
Knowledge Company HE RMB1,000,000 [F£

Limited (“Beijing Century”)
tRtERRERAR
(MERt4 )

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED

AR (FE) ROBRD A

AR%1,000,0007C
it EA



Notes to the financial statements

B %% W & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %=
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

23)1%-%— A=t—HILFE)

16. INVESTMENTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

a)

Singlee Software is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the PRC having an operational period
of 50 years up to 26 May 2049.

Singlee Technology is a sino-foreign equity joint
venture established in the PRC having an operational
period of 20 years up to 15 October 2021. Singlee
Technology was held by Singlee BVI and Singlee
Software.

Singlee Zhuhai is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
established in the PRC having an operational period
of 20 years up to 15 March 2022. Singlee Zhuhai
was held by Singlee BVI and Singlee Software.

Beijing Century is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the PRC having an operational period
of 10 years up to 15 June 2014.

In prior years, the directors determined the recoverable
amounts of the investments in subsidiaries on the
basis of value-in-use calculations and recognised
an impairment loss of RMB6,674,000. Value-in-
use calculations were based on past performance,
management’s expectations for the market development
and certain key assumptions. In 2009, the directors
assessed the recoverable amounts of the investments
in subsidiaries and concluded that the impairment
loss is not reversed as there is no favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amounts.

16. RMB AR 2 RE (&)

MR RRPEXL B
B REFHE_TMOAF
HEAZ+RBIEAHI50F -

AR BNPBERILZFIINE
BhE REFHE_FT_—F
+ AT R A ER#209F - # AR
A HNBVI S B FH -

AR EERBEKMZHINEG
B KEFHE-_T - —
= A+H B IERH20% - ¥ FIZK
BEFFBVIRFMEFEE -

ERELE RN B Z NG
B ReEFHE_T—0F
NATEHBIEAE10F -

RBAEFE  EFNEERER
HEEAREEEFRINBARZ
HEZJKE SR WHERRE
BB AR #6,674,0007T ° FHE
EFfENUBARE  EEEY
MEERZHERETEERR
BEE N BT HFE EEHEF
HERMB AR ZZE Z AT KkE S
B OBEzARALERERE
e E=BXAEEENKE
SR hEH I IR A 4T BB AT
ﬁ o

Annual Report 2009
SNFER

=

85




Notes to the financial statements

B % R MG

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= — 2371%‘?’ A=+—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

17. INVENTORIES 17. ®E&
The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008

—2TAE —TIN\F —TITAF —TINF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETRE ARMTE ARKTR

Finished goods SLPK o 4,922 5,314 4,872 5,123
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as WHERARAZCEESEITWOT :

an expense is as follows:

The Group
KEME
2009 2008
—EZTAFE ZTTN\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Carrying amount of EEFEZEREE
inventories sold 12,587 8,098
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B E 5 IR X Kk H ftt F& WL XX
15
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF ZZTTN\F —BZEhF ZZTTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTRE AR®BTR ARBTIT
Amounts due from JE BT /B 2 B R IE
subsidiaries (note a) (Fg5Ea) - - 8,194 8,215
Trade receivables U E 2 IR
(note b) (FF5ED) 20,590 8,751 - =
Prepayments and AN RIE &
other receivables Hofth & Y 5R I 513 240 204 223

21,103 8,991 8,398 8,438

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
AT (RE) ROBRAF
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B %% W & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B & 5 BR & & H it FE I X
(Continued) H(E)
a) Amounts due from subsidiaries a) EUWHEATRE

The Company
YN
2009 2008
—EEAFE ZZTTNF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AEETT

Due from subsidiaries JE U5 B B 1 B 3R IE 45,232 45,253
Less: impairment loss B R EEE (37,038) (37,038)

8,194 8,215
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, FEWHE AR REREER  TFER
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of I 4% B E B R o
repayment.

b) Trade receivables b) EWEZ KR

An aging analysis of trade receivables, net of impairment FEWE 5 B (HUR R ZE BRI BB
losses for bad and doubtful debts, is as follows: BIZBRERATAT -

The Group

REE
2009 2008

—gBAE | —TEN\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARBTE

Within 90 days 90K AR 9,759 6,682
91 to 180 days 912180k 3,633 48
181 to 365 days 181 XE365K 3,003 17
Over 365 days 365K 4,195 2,004

20,590 8,751
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Notes to the financial statements

I

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= — 2371%‘?’ A=+—HILFE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

b) Trade receivables (Continued)

The general credit terms of the Group range from a

half year to two years. The Group may, on a case

by case basis and after evaluation of the business

relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit

period upon customers’ request.

Ageing of past due but not impaired:

18. EINE 5 R X KR H fib fE IR
MIE(E)
b) BWREZRK(E)

AEBZ - REEHHFFEM
FAE - AEEAZRRERFGE

BEBEREER BEFPEX
EREEH -

EAERREERE S ERX
BREE DT ¢

The Group
REE
2009 2008
—EZBAE —ZETN\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TT
Overdue within i 5
2 years M A 700 =
700 -
Movements of impairment losses for bad and REEREBEBERE ESHEHI N
doubtful debts are listed below: ™
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—BENE  —FEN\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETT
At 1st January R—A—H 650 650
Charge for the year FARE 925 =
Write-offs i AR - =
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H 1,575 650

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
AT (RE) ROBRDF
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B %% W® & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= Zgghi‘?' A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERREEEY
The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008

—2TAE —TITN\F —TIAF —TING
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARMTRE ARMTR ARETR

Cash and bank deposits, R& KETER
denominated in

- Hong Kong dollars — AT A BN 285 25 269 7
— United States dollars —AETABEMN 11 184 - 174
— Renminbi —-UARBREAM 4,767 2,612 - -

Cash and cash equivalents Bf#ik &K A2

in the statement of RekBeEEY

financial position 5,063 2,821 269 181
Cash and cash BEREMERALZ

equivalents in RekReEEY

the consolidated

statement of cash flows 5,063 2,821
Cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB4,767,000 ReERBRSEEMOARKE4L,767,000
(2008: RMB2,612,000) are denominated in Renminbi, which T(ZZEZEN\F : AR%2,612,0007T)
is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of ZHeRBESEEMUAARE BEMN -
funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restriction ARBUIF—TEEHRLBER - {th
imposed by the PRC government. EHE S AR BB EEE LR

i
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Notes to the financial statements

I

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= — 2371%‘?’ A=+—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

20. LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 20. ER R HAMER
At 31 December 2009, loans and other borrowings were R-_ZEZNF+_A=+—H BEZxX
repayable as follows: HifER 2 BEFHUOT
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008

—EBNE —TTN\F —BEThF —TTNF
RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETE AR®TR AKETE

Within 1 year —ENR 18,551 16,805 18,551 16,805

At 31 December 2009, loans and other borrowings were RZZBZNF+ZA=+—H BExXK
analysed as below: BEMERZoMAT
The Group The Company
r~EH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008

—2BAF| —TT)\F —TBAE —TI)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARETRE ARMTR ARMTR

Bank loans, secured RITER - BHEMA
(note a) (HtsZa)
— repayable within 1 year —R—FREE 16,753 16,805 16,753 16,805
16,753 16,805 16,753 16,805
Other borrowings H At g0 - EHEIE
unsecured (note b), (M 7Eb)
repayable within 1 year —-R—FREE 1,798 - 1,798 -
18,551 16,805 18,551 16,805

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
AT (RE) ROBRDF
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B %% W® & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %=
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

23)1%-%— A=t—HILFE)

20. LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 20. EZRHEMER(E)
(Continued)
a) At 31 December 2009, the Group’s and the Company’s a) RZZETZNF+-_A=+—8"

bank loans of RMB16,753,000 (2008: RMB16,805,000)
bear interests at rates of Hong Kong Dollar Inter
Bank Offered Rate plus 2.75% per annum (2008:
Hong Kong Dollar Inter Bank Offered Rate plus
2.75% per annum). These loans were secured by (i)
properties held by Mr. Hung Yung Lai (“Mr. Hung”), a
director of the Company, and Ms. lu Pun, the spouse
of Mr. Hung, and (ii) properties held by Sing Lee
Pharmaceutical Import & Export Company Limited,
a company owned by Mr. Hung and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Ms. Li Kei Ling (“Ms.
Li").

The other borrowings were unsecured and repayable
within one year. At 31 December 2009, other borrowings
of RMB1,798,000 of the Group and of the Company
bear interests at rates of 3% per annum.

REBRARARZRITERAR
#16,753,000c( Z T & /A F ¢
A R #16,805,0007T ) BB F &
EIRIT R E IR B N2.75[E 51 & FI
B(ZZEZNF : REFHFBRT
FEFEM2.75EEFIE) - Z

EEFRUONARRAIZEFRAE L
i(f RITA ) AR &£ 2 BBk
WrriHE W Ri)kEE
HARARABZERBRRFTER LT
(IZ&+ DA 2 AT E
EHOBRARRAE ZWFER
ﬁo

HMERAEERREAR—FA
BEE - R-_TENF+ZA=1+
—H AEERARAZHME
FAR®E1,798,0007C @ THIREF
3EETE o
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B % R MG

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= 2371%‘?’ A=+—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21. BN E B R R H A =K

15
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE ZZTTN\F —ZEBERE ZZTT/)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AR®BTR ARBTT
Trade payables (note a) e E 5 R (Hista) 11,831 4,169 - -
Deposits and receipts in =~ &4 RBLEATE
advance from W ER M A
customers 474 538 - =
Accruals and EREA R
other payables H & 5RE 2,872 3,876 911 914
Due to ultimate holding JE A B AR AR A 7]
company (note b) B (FI5EDb) 12 12 12 12
Due to fellow subsidiaries PR R B A A8
(note ¢) (MI7Ee) - - - 6,948
Due to directors (note d)  JE{T=E = FIA (M aEd) 301 128 128 128
15,490 8,723 1,051 8,002
a) An aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: a) ENEZERERZERINTLT
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE ZZTT)N\F ZEERE ZZTT)N\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT AR®BTR ARBTT
Within 90 days 90K AN 4,271 3,375 - -
91 to 180 days 91 XE180K 4,409 185 - -
181 to 365 days 181 XE365K 2,613 205 - -
Over 365 days 365K A E 538 404 - -
11,831 4,169 - —

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
AT (RE) ROBRAF
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B %% W & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (Eﬁzﬂfzﬂzhi‘% A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

21.

22,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

b) The amount due to Goldcorp Industrial Limited
(“Goldcorp”) is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
has no fixed terms of repayment. Goldcorp is owned
by Mr. Hung Yung Lai, a director of the Company, and
Great Song Enterprises Limited, a company owned
by a controlling shareholder of the Company, Ms. Li
Kei Ling.

c) The amount due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

d) The amounts due to directors are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

e) All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled within one year.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents the unamortized balance of
revenue from provision of maintenance and other services
which are recognised on a straight-line basis to the
statement of comprehensive income over the period of
service provided to customers.

21. EHE SRR R EMEN
MIE (&)

22.

fEffGoldcorp Industrial Limited
([Goldcorpl) % 18 /& & & #
T ERYEBREERFEH -
Goldcorp/f & A 7 & £ A& gh 12
EENAARRERBREZTH
k&Lt H A 2 A aElGreat Song
Enterprises Limited# A °

F& A5 [R] 24 Y /BB 1 B R IR A SR AR HR
TR B R WEEEERFH -

ENESFASEEN - TFTER
I 4 B E B R FH -

P FE A58 55 AR AR S L At JE A5 RIR
BN —FAXM -

i 3E WA

B AR AR R R B A BR TS 2 R 3

WARREE - TREEPEERARRES
IR 2 A B ARVRER -
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B % R MG

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= — 2371%‘?’ A=+—HILFE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

23. SHARE CAPITAL

23. k&

The Group and

the Company

REBRAEAT
2009 2008
—EZAE —ZEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Authorised: JATE ¢
10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000/%
(2008: 10,000,000,000) (ZZ=/\£ : 10,000,000,0008%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRMEEC.01E T T B 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR :
663,200,000 663,200,000
(2008: 663,200,000) (ZZZ)\F : 663,200,0008%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE.O1 BT LB 6,632 6,632
Equivalent to RMB’000 ARBT T2 5E 6,827 6,827

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
AT (RE) ROBRAF




Notes to the financial statements

B %% W & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

24. RESERVES 24. f#fE
a) The Group a) XEE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ZRREREE AEE
Statutory
Share surplus  Exchange Accumulated

premium reserve reserve losses Total

EE
R E BERGRE EXRE 2itE#R st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®Tn ARMTR ARETxR

At 1 January 2008 R-EENE—F—A 58,148 3,613 3144 (83220)  (18,315)
Issue of shares SETRG

during the year 14,503 - - - 14,503
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - (4,240) (4,240)
Exchange difference BEIEESR

on translation HBRK L

of financial statements S E

of foreign entities - - 657 - 657

At 31 December 2008 RZEENF

and 1 January 2009 +-A=+—-8k
—2ZHE-A-H 72,651 3,613 3,801 (87,460) (7,395)
Profit for the year KEFAR - - - 1,302 1,302
Exchange difference BENEEE
on translation HBERE L
of financial statements ERZER
of foreign entities = = 1,416 = 1,416
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
+=ZA=1+-H 72,651 3,613 5,217 (86,158) (4,677)
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Notes to the financial statements

I

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (EHZE—
(Expressed in Renminbi)

24.

(AAR¥RENT)

ZEZJLK%— A=t—HILFE)

RESERVES (Continued) 24. f#E(E)
The Company b) AR F]
Share Capital Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BHEE  EARE 2 ERRE 2 RAEE @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE AR®TR AR%TR ARETR AR®T:x
At 1 January 2008 —FT)\F—f—H 58,148 4,718 (77)  (87,035)  (24,246)
Issue of shares 2ETRH
during the year 14,503 - - - 14,5603
Loss for the year AEEEAR - - - (8,961) (8,961)
Exchange difference BHEINBEE
on translation HmEL
of financial statements ~ EXZEE
of foreign entities - - 814 - 814
At 31 December 2008 ~ RZ=TZTN\F
and 1 January 2009 +-A=+-8kK
“ETNE
-fA—8 72,651 4,718 737 (95,996)  (17,890)
Profit for the year AEZAF - - - 4,983 4,983
Exchange difference BEINEEEE
on translation Ak
of financial statements ~ EXZHE
of foreign entities - - 30 = 30
At 31 December 2009 R-ZFFEHhE
+=f=+-A 72,651 4,718 767 (91,013)  (12,877)

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
FAEM (RE) ROEBRAF




Notes to the financial statements

3% W M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009)
(Expressed in Renminbi)

,Zﬂzhiﬂ' B=+—HIEFE)
<L/U\E"%?%$u)

24. RESERVES (Continued)

c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Statutory surplus reserve

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
transfer 10% of their net profit, after offsetting
prior years’ losses, as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make

good previous years’ losses, if any, and may
be converted into share capital by the issue of
new shares to shareholders in proportion to
their existing shareholdings or by increasing the
par value of the shares currently held by them,
provided that the balance after such issue is not

less than 25% of their registered capital.

The directors of Singlee Software and Beijing
Century resolved not to make any appropriation
to the statutory surplus reserve for the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 as these
subsidiaries have sustained loss after taking
for the years.

24, f#E(E)

c)

A2 EEEE K

(i)

(i)

R =E
fEhmER s EAXARE
—NN\—FRBEFEL4016EE

& o

EERNEE
FEMEARARTEE
%E'%EE%QEEEZ
BRE AN Z10%EBHE
EERER  BEEXRES
prEDEMEAZ250% - 8
BREZENBEREBLARD
RS TR AR -

EEAE A AABEBE
FREZBE(NEA)  BiB7R
BRBEFRERBIRELT
MO BEMZERRTA
B EEREE A AESE R
BEA . ERZETER:
HERPEINEMERZ
25% -

BRI B RREFREE
B NSRRI REL
EZZRTERBE_FT
NER_BBENFT_HA=
T—RLEFEELEREE
NTESER -
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Notes to the financial statements

I

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (EHZE—
(Expressed in Renminbi)

3371¢+ B=+—HIEFE)
(AAR¥RENT)

24. RESERVES (Continued)

c)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

The directors of Singlee Technology resolved
not to make any appropriation to the statutory
surplus reserve for the year ended 31 December
2009 and 31 December 2008 as this subsidiary
has sustained loss after taking into account
prior years’ losses.

The directors of Singlee Zhuhai resolved not to
make any appropriation to the statutory surplus
reserve for the years ended 31 December 2009
as these subsidiaries have sustained loss after
taking into account prior years’ losses. The
directors of this Subsidiary resolved not to make
any appropriation to the Statutory surplus reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2008 as this
Subsidiary has sustained loss for the years.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3(h).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company represents
the difference between the net asset value of
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
shares issued by the Company.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
FAEM (RE) ROEBRAF

24. f#E&(4E)

c)

REzHEEBN(E)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

HEEREL (E)
HRERBEFEZEE
BUENBARFESSE
E'%ﬂﬂ&25$ FIRT
eREBE_TTNF+=A
=t+— E&_??A¢+_
A=+—BHLEFEELEMA
EERTERBR -

HRERBEFEZER
BZEWBRARZFERSEE
B KB ZESHART
ERBE_TTNF+=A
=+ —BIEFEEEEME
EARBEER - BRULHE
RAEFHBER X5
BRARIZESHATERE
E-TTNF+_A=+—
BiIEFEELEMEE AR
DR o

B #E
EXFEHEERMAERRES
SNEERE 2 B TS SRR EE £ 2 S
ERBER - HREBDRIE
M EE3(h) 2 BFT R E
ﬁo

=N
EAN/NC = N R
MBARZEEFERARR
BIMBTRN ZEEMEH
ZER -




Notes to the financial statements

3% W M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (L/U\E"%?%Eu)

,23n¢+ A=t—HILFE)

24. RESERVES (Continued) 24. f#E(E)

c) Nature and purpose of reserves c) REZMHEHEN(E)
(Continued)
(v) Differences between financial statements (v) RIZFEE B RIFH
prepared under PRC accounting rules R [ 5 B 7 3R 2 2E Bl 4
and regulations and IFRSs 2RIz EE

PRC accounting rules and regulations required
the subsidiaries registered in the PRC to provide
for staff and worker’s bonus and welfare fund,
which are appropriated from net profit after tax,
after offsetting prior years’ losses, as determined
under PRC accounting rules and regulations, but
before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.
Appropriation to the staff and workers’ bonus
and welfare fund is at the discretion of the
directors of such subsidiaries. The staff and

RE SRR RGHRE
FE P B S HO B BB 2 B R 12
HBTEBERNES A
PR & & BR B 1R AR R b
e WEEEEFRZEBR
(IR P B & 5 A8 Al K {5k 1)
BE) BRARAKRRDIK
ZIE - BT REEEFE
EZRDBERNBARE
EWIFRE - BT RBMAE

worker’s bonus and welfare fund can only be FESRERAE TIRERR
utilized on special bonuses or capital items for A RZMBEARIEEAE

the collective benefits of the employees of the
individual subsidiary such as the construction
of dormitories, canteen and other staff welfare
facilities. The fund is non-distributable other
than in liquidation. When the relevant assets
are disposed of or written off, the original
transfers from the fund are reversed. Under
IFRSs, appropriations to the fund have been
included as expenses and the balance of the
fund as a liability of the Group. The directors
of such subsidiaries resolved not to make any
appropriation to the fund for the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008.

MWEARBEBRSAIER - 0
WEEE - ﬁﬁi&ﬁ@%l
BAEE - REEI B
TEDIK ° %ﬁ%%ﬁ’hﬁﬁ*ﬁ
MEER  Eez8HET
oo RIBE RIS RE &
A R HEINRRER
Ee &R AEREEA
- ZEMBRAAZESH
RREBE_ZETNEFR-F
ZNFTZA=1+—RHIF
ETRESR -

There are no other material differences between R4 AP B & 5t AR Al R A& 51 &
the Group’s financial statements prepared in BRI SR S EARE 2 A
accordance with PRC accounting rules and EEMGmERIWEEAMEARN
regulations and IFRSs. E=H o
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Notes to the financial statements

B %% W& MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (EZE—
(Expressed in Renminbi)

3371?‘?’ B=+—HIEFE)
(AAR¥RENT)

24. RESERVES (Continued)

d)

Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(“Companies Act”), share premium and capital reserve
are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of share
premium and capital reserve if (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due, or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its

liabilities and its issued share capital account.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Company
had no reserve available for distribution to equity
holders of the Company.

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
shareholders, by pricing products commensurately
with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
B (RE) ROEBRAF

24. f#E (&)

d)

it 2 AT B R

REBRE-NN—FRRE
(TRRE]  BPEBERER
BETSRTRE  EME)E

N AEOR KA B SR B A
BEIMZEE HNEEEZ
A] 2R EE S E R IR B mER
HEBERECETRARE 24
2 RIAR R BRI B R 30K B
B HEBRAREREANFEEE
H DK -

RZZEZNFRZZEZENF+Z

A=+—8 ' ' ARQalWEA] o
T ARDBIESTE A #E -
& REREE
REEEREACHEEZBREIR
EAREEEAEERERELSSE
B - (T B R R f oK
M JE 2 B i R AR 75 T8 B DA R &
BEERANBRE  BERRR
12 4 18] 3R K 7 EL A ) 25 4B A 3B 1R
g o

REBEBERKFE R ERNERERH
ERARER  KERSKRED
HIBRATAIEHE 2 BRSEEK
T EL B AT H) & AN AR 5 2R A 5T R
RARFE 2 HERAG & - 30 FE K
BRENECHERNEBEELR
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Notes to the financial statements

3% W M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009)

,Ezhiﬂ— A=t—HILLFE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (L/U\E"%?%Eu)

24. RESERVES (Continued)

e)

Capital risk management (Continued)

Consistently with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by adjusted capital.
as total debt (as shown in the statement of financial

Net debt is calculated

position) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity other than
amounts recognized in equity relating to cash flow
hedges, and includes some forms of subordinated
debt.

During 2009, as in the past few years as well, the
Group has been in an effort to gradually improve the
net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio to a reasonable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders,

raise new debt financing or sell assets

return capital to shareholders, issue
new share,

to reduce debt.

24, f#E(E)

e)

BAREMEE(E)

MEMRAZE % NEBALH
BABRERL X FHEREEER
ANEEE o ik b IR H B ERR A
RERTE - FRBRERE(H
REMBRAR)BRERE KBS SE
EBWE KABREXABEMA
KD (RERAREBERESRE

Bz w2 RIAIN) - ABIER
BEEIS TN -
R-ZZETNFHRE BRELF

— & AEBEHIZRPRELR
ERBEALXRFEE—EEE
KF o BIRFEHABL R - KK
BATEHEES N TRRZKE
BEEATERR  HTHR - R
SEERERHEEENRER

& o
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Notes to the financial statements

B % R MG

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (HZE—
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

22h¢+ A=t—HILFE)

24. RESERVES (Continued) 24. #HE(E)
e) Capital risk management (Continued) e) EXRABEE(E)
The Group
EE
2009 2008
—BBAFE _—_ZIENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Current liabilities: mBBaE
Loans and other borrowings ERREMER 18,551 16,805
Trade and other payables FEAT B 5 BR 3 R E At FE - FUE 15,490 8,723
Deferred income LA 241 420
34,282 25,948
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERAEEEYD (5,063) (2,821)
Net debt AR 29,219 23,127
Total equity ME LS 4R 2,150 (568)
Less: dividend paid B BERE - =
Adjusted capital RSN 2,150 (568)
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio KRABBEEANL R )F5HE 1,359%  N/ANE A
* Adjusted capital has remained in a negative position throughout * R-ZZ)\HHE - CHABERARFEEH

2008.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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1% W R M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (L/U\E"%?%Eu)

,23n¢+ A=t—HILFE)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION 25. EEEIRAE

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted on 27 August 2001, the directors may at their
discretion grant options to employees (including directors
of the Company) of the Group and other persons who,
in the sole discretion of the board of the directors, have
contributed to the Group (“Participants”). The Scheme
enables the Company to grant share options to Participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
The Scheme would be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on the adoption date. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. After the listing of the shares on GEM, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue upon completion of placing, capitalisation
issue and other shares to be issued upon the exercise of
the over-allotment option in connection with the listing of
the shares on GEM. According to the Scheme, the total
number of shares available for issue as at 31 December
2009 is 66,320,000 (2008: 66,320,000) shares.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12 month period up to the date of grant
must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date
of grant.

The subscription shall be at a price determined by the
board of directors at its absolute discretion and shall not
be less than the higher of the closing price of the shares
on the date of grant of the option and the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option.

BRERZZET—F\AZ+tHEN
ZREBREE([Z:TE]D &S
A2ERNBEATAHEE(BERAFMN
ET )REMEAEERBEBMZAL(A
BARI2EE DETERE TZEH
REARNABRLERET2HE  EA
BYREEHAEENEE R ER MR
B o ZEtEIRRME ABEMR EH}H'
FoBNERERTEIZE AERT
B—IRARA TR -

o

BEZTES TR ZBREZRG £
RS BEARRTEZ B EITRAN
30% ° RIRMERIER LTk - BIEZ
FH 8] R AT E At 51 B AT AL IR R O BB AR
RETAEHBETHRNABEE ETEE
BEKEE - ERMEBETERRETEBERE
FRAR#E AT B T LA B TTHO H AL AR 8 B R
BIER D BITRONI10% » BIFZE
RZZZAF+ZA=+—HARLEZ
BE A% # 566,320,0000F ( ZEE )\ £F :
66,320,0000%) °

ERLHRAEMN T EAREE2E
ERBITEEREBERNBRE(E
BEITERHARTENBRE) - (&M
EGERTRSTREITORNABETRE
BeREEEHEBETROMN1%

REBEEEAHEFTSEERTE  EXER
HﬂT\Qﬁé?ﬁHﬂEﬁ%F%ﬁ B &R fn W T B
EEHEREEPIAMEE XS
WHEEMETNRSE -
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B %% W& MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (HE=-ZTTNF+_A=1T—HILFE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Continued)

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon
receipt of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee
within 28 days from the offer date, together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the
board to each grantee but may not be exercised after the
expiry of ten years from the date of grant.

On 8 April 2002 the Company granted 60,230,000
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under
the Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.614 per share
to its employees (including three executive directors) of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price
of HK$0.58 immediately before the day on which options
were granted. Share options granted are subject to a
vesting scale in tranches of 33.3 per cent each per annum
starting from five months after the date of grant and fully
vested in five months after the second anniversary of the
date of grant, providing that the grantees remain under
the employ of the Group. The vested share options are
exercisable within ten years of the grant date.

On 1 June 2004 the Company granted 10,000,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the scheme
at an exercise price of HK$0.14 per share to two chief
executives of the Group. Shares of the Company were at
closing price of HK$0.14 immediately before the day on
which options were granted. The vested share options are
exercisable within ten years of the grant date. All share
options granted on 1 June 2004 were forfeited during the
year ended 31 December 2005.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
FAEM (RE) ROEBRAF

25. EEEREE)

EETHEARZLARE TRAREN
FERXERM2BRN  BEAHEMN
BRENERENELXBARRE - L F
R S REUE BB 1 T B AR AR
B ERTETHEQRZHCHABRE
FRERE °

BREATNEZ AN AR AN HRE
P B B AR 4 B A A AT I RO R 1T 2 - 18
AR G B IR+ FEREBRITRE

RARRZAERZTEZEFHMAN
HREAES(BEMUMITES)ET
60,230,0000% % n 2 B iz i - szt IR
E2ITEEBAEREK0.614T - I£1E
RIERRAII—ERXZH » NARKHKRE
Wi {8 A SR E¥0.587T - AR BH
EHRFTRAEARLE  ERNERES
REFIBI%HRESHER - WHRE
LEME—RAFEABEAZEERS &
HREARANBDARBAEEREE -2
BRERER AL BB TF AT
1718 ©

ARRAEZFAERZZTMF A
—HRAmMEZaREEEETIRT
10,000,000/% i 7 2 BE AR 4 - Z AR
EZTEBAEBREK0.147T - FEER
BEERAI—EAXSA » AARKRER
TEAERBE014T - CEBERE
AREE BBRF TFRTURITE - B
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= Zgghi‘?' A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Continued) 25.EEERE(E)

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 RKRARRZAERZZEZLFET AN

options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at
closing price of HK$0.36 immediately before the day on
which options were granted. Share options granted are
subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 5 per cent starting
from six months after the date of grant and fully vested
after the third anniversary of the date of grant, providing
that the grantees remain under the employ of the Group.
The vested share options are exercisable within ten years
of the grant date.

HmE{E S8 747,550,000/ % 5 <2
BhE ZUREZTEE/SEBEE
#0.3687C - EEBERR AT —ERX 5
B ARRNBRRUAHESSRER
0.367T - AR AHIE HEFNEA
Fth  EREBRESIRSNZRED
B YRERLBEHE=BFREEH
BB REREARAADARASEE

ERBERETNE LA RER T
FRTFUAITE -

a) Movements in share options a) BREZZF
2009 2008
—EThE ZTTNF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
MEEF 5 BRE I R tE
TEE 2 H 1B s
HK$ ’000 HK$ 000
BT TR BIT Fh%
Outstanding at R—HA—BRARITE
1 January 0.386 44,000 0.388 51,750
Cancelled B - - - -
Lapsed B 0.368 (10,520 0.401 (7,750)
Outstanding at RTZHA=+—H
31 December A AR TTE 0.391 33,480 0.386 44,000
Options vested at R+=-—A=+—8
31 December ERB 0.411 18,330 0.452 9,303

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had
an exercise price of HK$0.614 and HK$0.368 (2008:
HK$0.614 and HK$0.368) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 7.25 years (2008: 8.38
years).

R-BZAE+-_A=+—RH2
MARITEBREZTEER0.614
I K%0.368 (=TT N\ F -
0.6147% 7t }2.0.3687% 7t ) K hn #
FHBRTEHOFHAT.F (=T
T\ : 8.384) o

Annual Report 2009
T NEER




Notes to the financial statements

I
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Continued) 25. EEERE(Z)

a) Movements in share options (Continued)

The following table discloses the details of the

a) BREZZE(E)

T%&E%%&Eéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg

share options held by directors and employees and 2B —ETNFERE
movements in such holdings during year 2009: )
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Lapsed as at
Name of 1 January during 31 December
directors/employees 2009 the year 2009
RZZBRF R-ZZBRF
-A-H RER +=A=+-H
EE EERE R AT x¥ R AT
Options granted on 8 April 2002 R-ZEZ-FWANAH
R Bk
Cui Jian (director) ER(ES) 3,180,000 - 3,180,000
Other employees (other than directors) ~ EMEE (TEEESE) - - -
3,180,000 - 3,180,000

Options granted on 9 October 2007 RZZEZLE+ANA
P

Chan Kam Fai (Chief Executive Officer) — FREBIE(1TH#EE)
(Note 1) (PzE1)
Other employees (other than directors) ~ EMEE (TEEESE)

Note:

1 Mr. Chan Kam Fai has tendered his resignation as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group due to his own career
development with effect from 23 October 2008.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
AT (RE) ROBRDF

6,000,000 (6,000,000)

34,820,000 (4,520,000) 30,300,000

44,000,000  (10,520,000) 33,480,000

B FE

1. RGEAEREBEARESE
EREETTHRAE 2B -

&% T B¢
BH-=

ENFTAT=HRER -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= ZEZUL?‘?' A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Continued) 25.EEERE(E)

a) Movements in share options (Continued) a) BRECEE(E)
The following table discloses the details of the TREREERESAFRERE
share options held by directors and employees and ZEHBERZZEENF 2 ERE
movements in such holdings during year 2008: )
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Lapsed as at
Name of 1 January during the 31 December
directors/employees 2008 year 2008
RZTEN\E RZTEN\E
—A-H RER +=A=+—8
B /REMA AT B HARITHE
Options granted on 8 April 2002 RZZEZZEMA/\B
Rz Bk
Cui Jian (director) ER(ES) 3,180,000 = 3,180,000
Other employees (other than directors)  HMEE (TEEESE) 1,020,000  (1,020,000) =

4,200,000 (1,020,000) 3,180,000

Options granted on 9 October 2007 RZZET+F+ANA
R B

Chan Kam Fai (Chief Executive Officer)  BRERIE(1THEE)
(Note 1) (BF=E1) 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Other employees (other than directors) ~ Eft{EE (FBEEE)
41,550,000 (6,730,000) 34,820,000

51,750,000 (7,750,000) 44,000,000

Note: ffaE -

1 Mr. Chan Kam Fai has tendered his resignation as the 1. FeR 58 78 4t AE R EL 8] A 35 2635 /B 1 7
Chief Executive Officer of the Group due to his own career EREEITHRER ZBE =%
development with effect from 23 October 2008. ENF+AZF=BEBERK -
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I

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (&%= 2371%‘?’ A=+—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Continued) 25. EEERE(Z)

b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised b) BERFHEECEREK
share options at the end of the THBRE 2R
reporting period

Remaining Exercise Number of options
Date granted Exercise period contractual life price 2009 2008
HK$ ’000 '000
EREHAE
bl =p TERE BTENES TEE —EEAF Z—TITNF
BT TR TR
8 April 2002 7 September 2002 2.27 years 0.614 1,060 1,060
—TE-FWMANR to 7 April 2012 2,27
—ET-FNALBZE
“T-_FNALRA
8 April 2002 7 September 2003 2.27 years 0.614 1,060 1,060
—ZZ_F£WANR to 7 April 2012 2.27F
“ET=FNAtHEZ
“E-—F#MA+tA
8 April 2002 7 September 2004 2.27 years 0.614 1,060 1,060
—“EE-EMANA to 7 April 2012 2.27%F
“ETWNENAERE
“E-—FMALH
3,180 3,180
9 October 2007 8 April 2008 7.77 years 0.368 1,515 2,041
—EZLETANA to 8 October 2017 7ITE
ZETNFMANEZE
—tF&+ANA
9 October 2007 8 October 2008 7.77 years 0.368 3,030 4,082
—ZEEETANR to 8 October 2017 7.07F
ZEENETANBZE
—tF+ANA
9 October 2007 8 October 2009 7.77 years 0.368 10,605 14,287
—ZT+ETANA to 8 October 2017 77T
“ZTNETANBE
“E—+tF#+ANRH
9 October 2007 8 October 2010 7.77 years 0.368 15,150 20,410
—EZRLETANA to 8 October 2017 7ITE
“E-ZF+ANBZE
—tE&+ANA
30,300 40,820
33,480 44,000

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
AT (RE) ROBRDF




Notes to the financial statements

B %% W® & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %=
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

23)1%-%— A=t—HILFE)

25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION (Continued)

b)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised
share options at the end of the
reporting period (Continued)

In prior years, no amounts were recognised when
employees (which term includes the directors of the
Company) were granted share options over shares in
the Company has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in paragraph 53 of IFRS 2 under
which the recognition and measurement policies
have not been applied to (i) all options granted to
employees on or before 7 November 2002. and (ii)
all options granted to employees after 7 November
2002 but which had vested before 1 January 2005.
If the employees chose to exercise the options, the
nominal amount of share capital and share premium
were credited only to the extent of the option’s
exercise price receivable.

25. EEEREE)

b)

BERRHZECEME R
TEBREZGR(E)

7R B B B R B %5 RS E R
SE25% O3 P &L 2 IR R
At - BBLFAERRL TER
(M—FF_F+—-AtHKZ
B T B B 2 P A BB R S (iR
—EZE_F+-AERAEETE
EER_TTRF-A—HAE
REOMABRE AR BESF
EERERER S RARABBRMD Z
BRI EIERE M R o
FREEETERBRE BRAR
P 7 )4 (B T B & 58 12 DA 7] W ER BB
BAETTEBRRETA -

c) Terms of share options granted after c) REFHELEZECRTER
the end of the reporting period FE 2 R X
On 19 January 2010 the Company granted 20,900,000 RARIZZTER T —FF—

options to subscribe for shares in the Company
under the Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.20
per share to its directors and employees of the
Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price
of HK$0.20 immediately before the day on which
options were granted. Share options granted are
subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 5 per cent
starting from six months after the date of grant and
fully vested after the third anniversary of the date of
grant, providing that the grantees remain under the
employ of the Group. The vested share options are
exercisable within ten years of the grant date.

At+thBREEEREERT
20,900,0008% f% 7 = B A #E - 5%
B ZTEERETRER0.20
T EEKREERA —ER S
H AARNKRERTERSTK
BE0.20L - AR BHAE B
AAEARE EREERES
BE%ZHBESMEERE - WREH
BHE=-RAFTFRZHEB ' K4t
BEBANEDNARAEBREEZR
EE EEEBREATNEZLEA
HBAREET TS A T LATT{E ©
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B % W& MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= 2225715‘?' A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

26. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 26. RIKERIFHE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions to
the scheme vest immediately.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC,
subsidiaries established in the PRC Singlee Software,
Singlee Technology, Singlee Zhuhai and Beijing Century
participate in defined contribution retirement schemes
organized by the relevant local government authorities in
Mainland China. Each employee covered by these schemes
is entitled, after retirement, to a pension payment equal
to the basic salary of the employees as of their retirement
dates. Singlee Software, Singlee Technology, Singlee
Zhuhai and Beijing Century are required to make monthly
contributions to the retirement scheme, up to the time of
retirement of the eligible employees, at 20%, 20%, 10%
and 20% respectively of their basic salaries. The local
government authorities are responsible for the pension
liabilities to these retired employees.

At 31 December 2009, the Group had no significant
obligation apart from the contribution as stated above
(2008: Nil).

AEFBRBEERGE AR K
Bl RREFEEREBEIZEZEE
EEAHELTESE( RESA
g BB ABIEEAE

B2 ERE RN E - RIFBES A
g EEIRHEESEAREEZEH
WAZERIEL R AT AR RBK
A20,000/8 7T & LR - MEFEEL 2
KR EREEME -

aneR BIAR RIS AR PIFT AT B - AR ER
B0 B S22 BT I & B (R A BR 4 - 37 A R
B HAkERIERER)E2EAS
B Rt U7 BT M B 2R 0 2 R R SRR
REtE - 2NRERARESHEZER
REREAIRBEENERARFEARTE
ZRIRE o N - AR #F
KERIERULFERERARILEE
NI E 220% - 20% * 10%K%20% 5
AESARERKSEEEL MR Y
BRE 2 BT HE BT BAKER

——
= °

R-ZFBFNFT_A=1+—8 " KL
BARSHFIAEEY BEMEAEFE
(ZZEENF8) -
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3% W o M

(For the year ended 31 December 2009)
(Expressed in Renminbi)

26.

27.

,Zﬂghiﬂ' B=+—HIEFE)
<L/U\E"%?%$u)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 26. B{kE@F:tE(£&)
(Continued)
Details of the pension contributions made by the Group, E/\\7T'<¢W  AEBEREBRKEFEIZ
which have been dealt with in the consolidated results ERFAGEREEREEN BB
of operations of the Group for the current year, were as —F :
follows:
The Group
REH
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AREBTIT
Contributions to retirement benefits ROKEFIET &I 50
scheme 963 660
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. €T A

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables. The Group’s
financial liabilities include bank and other borrowings,
trade and other payables.

The Group does not have nor has issued financial instruments
for trading purposes. Exposure to credit, interest, liquidity
and currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group'’s
business. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. The Group does not require collateral
in respect of financial assets.

At the end of reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position. The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk.

AEEzeRMEERRRENASEFE
Y BUE SRR E M EKFIR -
SEzeMABERRBRRITREMESR
JE A B 55 B 3R S EL A JE A5 5R0R

AEELERBTERTAUERES B
e AREEAREBBRETEAXES

BRR  SREEAR  FMEXRERE R
PESRRIEEERAR - NREBERAT
St 2 B 765 B IR R I AB ) 2R B TR

ZN

a) FERAMR

AEBZEERRET2HEBKE
FGERAREMERFIRBERE - %T
BERETHEZEERRE
?iia%?%’%@ﬁrﬁ%ﬁz%%@
cAREGUMAREFPAES
%’K%ﬂ*gﬁfﬂ*,l;ﬂéﬁ ZINE S
BEBCYMBEEE AR S

BERHRYTE FERRZR
SEDCRBBRRERPIZE MG
BEZEREERY - AEBEILE
ERREEFEERR
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (HE=-ZTTNF+_A=1T—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to fair value and cash flow
interest risks is normal. The Group is exposed to
interest rate risk related to its loans and borrowings.
In order to minimise the risks, management has
closely monitored the exposures.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the
Group’s bank borrowings are disclosed in note 20.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

Foreign currency risk

A substantial-portion of the Group’s revenue-generating
operations and its expenses are transacted in
Renminbi. Renminbi is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through the
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
PBOC. On 21 July 2005, with the authorisation from
the PRC government, the PBOC announced that the
PRC government reformed the exchange rate regime
by moving into a managed floating exchange rate
regime based on market supply and demand with
reference to a basket of currencies.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
FAEM (RE) ROEBRAF

27. €M I E (&)
b) FI=[E kK
AEEZATERRSREMNE

d)

RERBLEFREE AKERHEE

KNSR EH A K@ o S
ERREREK  EEEEEIE

=AERER -

AEBBITER AR RERF
HPA B SE20VE R BR o

REE SRR

AEEETZBYEETRAR
TEEESEEI, 8RS
Bt ZRBRERERERARE
NIEEIR & FHK  EEEREBED

MR E 2 E TEENKF - AIEA
BEERAAIESEG 2 ERFIE
B -AEBECZHEITERERL
HAREHARBESMERASE
FEERE UBRREE#FRT
WZReHENRATERZE 2T
LmEES AR EE i
BEIE R 9 2 A E%ﬂﬁ
NEMERHRRARSDE S

Sk o

SN [ B

AEEBABOELERSEZER
RERAXEHUARBETRS -
ARBETEAHLBBINE - T
B RARE ZINER 5 WBEB
BRBEARRITTAITLD @ 3
REESINEZHMEEBETT -
%Ex%%%%ZET%Aﬁﬁ
NZER - W_TTRHFLH
—t—B EFERAEET
AT E i o BB ot B = i) & o
TTRE - ERGIERSIAT S H
KREE  2E-LTIHNEFHE
ZERFHERG|E
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B %% W® & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %=
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

23)1%-%— A=t—HILFE)

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance
of earnings outside the PRC, are subject to the
availability of foreign currency (which depends on
the foreign currency denominated earnings of the
Group) or must be arranged through the PBOC with
government approval.

27. &M I A(E)

d) JNERE(E)

AINE S 2 R (BRI W e B
AR BIRON) AT B A 2 NS P
PR (1R F 2 5 B IASNE 5HE 2 W
ﬁﬁff)‘i%\/,\iﬁLﬂP BARRITR
BE - YARBIBFHE -

e) Fair value e) A¥E
The carrying amounts of significant financial assets RZZEZNFRZZEZNF+=
and liabilities approximate their respective fair values A=+—HB EXUBEEKE
as at 31 December 2009 and 2008. BeHBEHNAESBCATE -
(i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other () BHzREZZEY  BEK
receivables, and trade and other payables EZRMRAMEWE
BB E SRR EME
115018
The carrying values approximate their fair MR ZUEFEER ZE 8 A
values because of the short maturities of these HOESCEREENREAD
items. FAE o
(i) Loans and borrowings (i) B REM
The carrying amount of loans and borrowings BERRERZEEEO AR
approximates their fair values based on the LRI B By B H F 81 &% 2 2]
borrowing rates currently available for loans and HAEL 2 B & &K EUSE
borrowings with similar terms and maturities. ZIEEBERGFEZAFEE-
f) Economic risk f) RKERR

The Group’s operations may be adversely affected by
significant political, economic and social uncertainties
in the PRC. Although the Government of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC Government”) has been
pursuing economic reform policies for the past years,
no assurance can be given that the PRC Government
will continue to pursue such policies or that such
policies may not be significantly altered.

$E@¥%ﬂ§$EZEKﬂ
BN E TR R
w%°ﬁ%¢$AE%ﬂﬁﬁ
FF(TRBERA]DEBE —BEHET
RERERR > EERETH
B GEEESBEBRRLER
BERNGRIBER
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= 2371%‘?’ A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 27. BT A(4&)

g) Business risk g) EKEpk
A substantial portion of the Group’s operations is AEBABHERHES EH#E
conducted in the PRC. This includes risks associated TeoltBREZARERRR)F
with, among others, the political, economic and legal Bz BUA ~ LB REGIIRE -

environment in the PRC.

h) Liquidity risks h) REBESEK
The Group maintains a prudent financial policy and $ SEESHBEE PR
ensures that it maintains sufficient cash resources CWREREA R T RR® KR
to meet its liquidity requirements. Eﬁﬁmibﬁiﬁﬁ/\

i) Sensitivity analysis i) BREDIWN
In managing interest rate and foreign currency risks REEBRBEENERINERR Z
the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term B ZTJFHEEE HAEBE W 2R
fluctuations on the Group’s loss. Over the longer term, HrEHTE . REmMS @ IR
however, permanent changes in foreign exchange and FIERE R 2 KA BB E R E H
interest rates would have an impact on consolidated BEARE RZEZENFT=
loss. At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that A=+—H #srEfXREET
a general decrease of one percentage point in K—EE % THFESRT
interest rates would increase the Group’s profit/(loss) BEKTZEZBERAT  BEAR
before taxation by approximately RMB185,000 (2008: SEZBRTATRR,(EE) BN
RMB168,000 profit) so far as the effect on interest- 4 A K #185,000t( — T & )\
bearing financial instruments is concerned. F: AR®168,0007t&F) ©

28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28. EXEABAIRS

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRZEMBRREMIE D IETE2ZE

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had R REEBIN » AEBFERNETT NHIE

the following material related party transactions during RNEBHER S °

the year.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= 2371?‘?’ A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 28. EXBEEARZ (££)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Key management personnel remuneration FEEEEAEHNE
Remuneration for key management personnel, including TEEEBEEAEMSO T Ef e
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in XA FARRREE 2 RBE (R 1035
note 10, is as follows: B):
The Group
rEH
2009 2008

ZEThE —TI)N\F
RMB'000 = RMB'000
ARBTR  AESTI

Short-term employee benefits EHESREH 1,697 1,754
Retirement scheme contributions N R 154 51
Total =Xl 1,851 1,805
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see M eamEE N B IA] (RHES)
note 8). B o
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I

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (EHZE—
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR &EAL)

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2009, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease in

23h¢+ A=t—HILFE)

respect of premises as follows:

a) As lessor

The Group leases out part of its leased properties under
operating lease. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one year, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating lease are as follows:

REBERE

|

NZZEZENF+_A=+—8  REHF

MmEZ ARG EEERY A&

Q

BARREZ N Z&ERSHEERNT

EREEA

AEESKERBEEHERARZ
HOMELE - —MRAKH - BL
ZNFEHE—F  LHBRERE
RANEFEBABEGRRZAR
BEEEN - ZFROBERERX

RZZEZENF+_A=+—H"
RIETAIHELEEERL - K
SERAREN 2 ZEHEERE
LU
The Group
rEHE
2009 2008
—EERE —ZTT)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AEETT

Within one year

—&FR
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B %% W® & MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# %= 2371?‘?’ A=+—HIFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. &&FHE&EE(ZE)

(Continued)
b) As lessee b) #EAEBA
At 31 December 2009, the total future minimum lease RZZEZNF+ZA=+—8 "
payables under non-cancellable operating lease are BRBETARELCEEERON K
as follows: REMN 2 HEHSBERAT ¢
The Group The Company
REH AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE ZTENF —ZBEAF ZZTITN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTRE AR®BTR ARBTIT
Within one year —F1& 318 489 - -
After one year but —FRERFER
within five years - 163 - -
318 652 - -
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to —MRE MO 2P FERAE—
two years, with an option to renew the lease when all E2F WHEBEEZEEARER
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes ERRAEGRRAREEEY ZE
contingent rentals. HAMEBFENAED
30. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 30. kBB =F
Certain comparative figures have been restated and ETHRETFEEIREFDEUFE
reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. KFEEZEHR - EEZRE BEHVRER
The directors consider that it would better reflect the DA E BB RMABER S 2 HE -

substance of the underlying transactions.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (# % 2371%‘?’ A=+—HIEFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

31. IMMEDIATEAND ULTIMATECONTROLLING 31. EERZAREZERA L

PARTY

At 31 December 2009, the directors consider the immediate RZZEZNF+TZA=1T—H %R

parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be ARASE 7 EEN QG REEERA

Goldcorp Industrial Limited, which is incorporated in the T ARREEBE S K 2Goldcorp

British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial Industrial Limited -+ Itk 723 530 £& 45 22 7]

statements available for public use. HAREH 2 M HBHWE -

32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 32. Gt TR A&

JUDGEMENTS

a) Impairment for bad and doubtful debts a) RBHRBERE
The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and REBREPELELHAFNRK
doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the REEZEFBEFRRERR
customers to make the required payments. The Group BEE AEBUAERBKERZE
bases the estimates on the aging of the accounts e BPE 2 EZ MR ® iR
receivable balance, customer credit-worthiness, and EERMEARFOER - B
historical write-off experience. If the customers’ ZEAARRE - BB HHEEEE
financial position were to deteriorate, actual write- e R o ET S o

offs would be higher than estimated.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009)

,23n¢+ A=t—HILFE)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (L/U\E"%?%Eu)

32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

b)

Impairment for non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the net book value of a
non-current asset may not be recoverable, the asset
may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with IAS
36 “Impairment of Assets”. The carrying amounts
of non-current assets are reviewed periodically in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the net selling price and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling
price because quoted market prices for the Group’s
assets are not readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the
asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to level of
sale volume, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sale volume, selling
price and amount of operating costs.

32. FEHEET R HE(E)

b) FARBEERE

HWEBRBRIFERDEEZRE
FEREEAKED  AREEE
R RIERE] XARER
BR& 5t ERIF36% EERE ]
ERBEEE - FRBEEZRK
B g E MG - AfEE A K E
HERETHRE=EREEE - &
SHIRBEEPWMREEZC T
5% B 1 (B 7] BE A MBI B - B 8
EERSETREMN - MER
THRER  REEESHERK
Bl{E - AJ U BB 2 bA S & B B (E
REEMERZBSEE - B
REAEEHRNESEEZARAD
B Hut AL G EE -
EFEEEREER  BEMEL
ZEHMBRERESHRAEZHR
B EAME2HHERE SEM
RERAREELERHL - K&
BEETRANKOHBEREZS
BRERERAMAAHRERZ
B BERBAEMAIXFZ
BRBAIEHZ B MEER - &
BREERANZTER -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2009) (HE=-ZTTNF+_A=1T—HILFE)
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR A7)

32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

c)

d)

Provision for diminution in value of
inventories

If the costs of inventories fall below their net
realisable values, a provision for diminution in
value of inventories is recognised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The Group bases the
estimates on all available information, including
the current market prices of the finished goods
and raw materials, and historical operating costs.
If the actual selling prices were to be lower or the
costs of completion and other distribution costs
were to be higher than estimated, the actual
provision for diminution in value of inventories
could be higher than estimated.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses carried forward to the extent it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily
involves judgement regarding the future financial
performance of the particular legal entity or tax
group in which the deferred tax asset has been
recognised. A variety of other factors are also
evaluated in considering whether there is convincing
evidence that it is probable that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately
be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, group relief, tax planning
strategies and the periods in which estimated
tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount
of deferred taxation and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at each the end of the
reporting period.
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32. FEHEET R A E(E)

c)

d)

FERERE

MEERATH®REENEATEE
FE - AeRRTERBERE -

AR EEEEASEBARESR
ZIHEEE - REKZEEIAR
RETHEME ZMETKA o &
SEEBRMEREREE MG
i BREXNGERERMEIZEAR
TEARBAERLERAN - HEE
EEERNGEFTEE  KTEXKZK

AREMDEKEASREEE
%’E%ﬁ ﬂﬁ@ﬁT%%\
HEr &%

HAAREFEHRBEEBRELENET
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(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability A B&EEFMMR 2 ERAT )
(Stock Code B 31X3% : 8076 )
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